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2010 2009
(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, —E-SF -—TTHhE

unless specified) Notes
(NAEBBEBTREN - RERIFHAN)

Turnover mEE 9,998 9,669 8,299 7,749
Profit for the year AREER

attributable to equity FrE& ey

holders of the Company NEEHF 860 926 625 480
Total equity el 4,275 3,916 3,315 2,930
Total assets BEE 6,792 6,890 5,842 5,266
Total liabilities to total equity ratio 42 & (EELM@1E I & 0.6 0.8 0.8 0.8
Total interestbearing B s B

debts to total equity ratio RS I R 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3
Current ratio bk = 2.0 1.9 1.6 15
Trade and bills receivables MR R RN E R

to turnover (days) d=¢<(0=)) 34 39 48 41
Inventory to turnover (days) TELEERE(A) 60 60 57 61
Net assets per share BREETE

(HK cents) CEEA) 322 295 250 221
Return on total assets (%) BEAERRE%) 12.7 13.4 10.7 9.1
Return on turnover (%) L ORE (%) 8.6 9.6 7.5 6.2
Interest cover (times) FEREL & () 1 26 29 16 14
EBITDA BB WER

BRI 2 1,389 1,578 1,076 826
EBITDA on tumnover (%) BB WEREE
BIAE b 2 S5 (%) 13.9 16.3 13.0 10.7
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(Amounts expressed in HK$'million, =

unless specified) g

S BETTAEN - BREFRIFERIN) 2z

(7]

Basic eamings per share EAXGREF %

(HK cents) (EH#A) 3 64.8 69.8 471 36.2 m

ot

Dividends per share RS R

(HK cents) (B#Al) 40 43 27 22 it

Dividend yield (%) i B B4R (%) 4 10.0 7.7 5.1 3.7 i%f

S

Number of issued shares BEITRHEE 2
(million) (&) 1,327 1,327 1,326 1,326

Number of employees BEAH
Hong Kong and Macau &R RMA 704 716 682 1,007
Taiwan =y 538 587 640 737
Mainland China Iy N 22,254 23,372 21,300 20,249
Singapore g 197 369 522 464
Malaysia BIRAD 160 185 256 343
Total kg 23,853 25,229 23,400 22,800
Notes: Wi -
1. Interest cover was calculated by dividing the profit before interest and 1. FIEARIEL F.2 515 BFIARFIE 72 % I8 F 8 &
tax by the interest expenses. FHZIEE -

2. EBITDA is the earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 2. BB TERBEFIFERAFFIE  HE - &
amortisation expenses. R E HBIFE

3. Number of shares was on weighted average basis. 3. R 17 E B 1T E -

4. Dividend yield was calculated by dividing the dividends per share by the 4. REEIFFE 2 51 H B RR B BA L ARG 3R &
closing market price per share as at the end of the respective reporting KEERKTTEZHEFE -
periods.

5. The financial results of the above refer to the results of the Group for 5. KRBT IR E B R S ER B FZ ) RAE - R
each financial year. And, the other figures used were the position of the B FRIIEREBRIGRTRE AR I8 -
Group as at the end of the respective reporting periods.
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For this year, the Group’s consolidated revenue and profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company both hit record
highs at HK$10,538 million and HK$1,007 million respectively.
More information regarding the Group’s operating performance
can be found in the Management’'s Discussion and Analysis
section in this report.

Following an uneasy year for the textile business in 2009, the
operating environment was more favourable this year. Order flow
was uninterruptedly strong throughout the period. Raw material
prices started to surge in the second half year, creating a greater
challenging situation to the Group. Nevertheless, the Group was
able to raise product prices to protect profit margins.

The retail business also achieved improved results this year.
With stabilized consumer sentiment, retail operation in the
mainland China had a remarkable performance in the second
half year. At the year end, all the Singapore and Malaysia stores
were closed. The Group will focus its retail expansion solely in
the mainland China market.

| believe business prospects of the Group remain positive.
For the textile business, the Group will continue its capacity
expansion to capture further market share. The retail business
has a solid foundation in the mainland China market and
profit margin enhancement is expected in the coming year.
Financially, the Group will continue to implement prudent
policies to strengthen business capability. The Group has strong
competitiveness in all aspects and | am confident to report
another progressive results in the coming year.

This year the Group is celebrating its 35th anniversary. It has
been due to the devotedness of our colleagues, great support
of our business partners and shareholders that the Group has
been able to grow continuously. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to thank them all.

Poon Bun Chak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2010

RNEEREE Z BUA KRR R RIS FTA E B
wmABIFE - 2 REEK10,538F B kB
B1007TEEL - BEAREESZ V7 EEREEA
B T RRAFREEB ZHIL RS —E -

RELXTBHZ _FTFNF  AFEZRERER
RER - ATEEZHORBELRT - REER
ETHERGE L SherAEEEAREE 2R
Mo AT - AREBEIEEIRSE MER A REER
A o

TEXBRAFTIMGEL 2 X8 - HHBEDL
REBAT  ZTEEBRTHFETRAREAR
ZZRBR - IR - FTAEINE N SR 5
HE2HER - AEERETETBAETRSEF
TEZER -

AANBEARBZEERRIMALER - HBER
N AEERBEBIEMERAENESZTSE
X  ZEEBRETEAECERERE - XKF
BEMNEEMSEEREY - MEHE - A&E
AR B AT IR A TS SR DA DN SR KA RE S - ANER
BAESSEGABABF N - MAANERFGER
ERTETZEEREELD

AFERARE=THBFRE - REEZTEK
& 2REREZEHEMREBBH KR
ZRNXFE - RARRKEFTEMMMERLEK
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

For this fiscal year ended 31 March 2010, the Group’s total
revenue increased by 5.4% to HK$10,538 million (2009:
HK$9,998 million). Profit for the year attributable to the equity
holders of the Company amounted to HK$1,007 million (2009:
HK$860 million), an increase of 17.1%. The Group’s gross profit
margin was 33.4% (2009: 33.0%), a slight improvement of 0.4%
from last year. The Board has recommended a final dividend
of HK26.0 cents (2009: HK22.0 cents) per ordinary share.
Including interim dividend, total dividend per ordinary share
would be HK48.0 cents, an increase of 20.0% from last year’'s
HK40.0 cents.

Textile business

Turnover of the fabric business grew by 9.5% to HK$5,540
million (2009: HK$5,058 million). The sum represented 52.6%
of the Group’s total revenue. Business conditions were more
favourable compared with the previous year and orders from
customers were stable throughout the whole period. Raw
material prices started to rise at the beginning of the second
half year. From October 2009 to March 2010, raw material
prices had increased by over 20%. The Group was generally able
to pass the cost increase to the customers by raising product
prices. However, due to the volatility of raw material prices, the
proportion of rush orders was less in the second half year. In
this year, average selling prices still dropped by 6.4% compared
with last year. Production capacity grew by about 15% and sales
volume increased by 17.6%. The performance and the key
financial ratios of the business were as below:

(HK$ million)

(E¥EET)

Net sales SHEFEE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE (%)
Operating profit (note) BERBE )
EBITDA (note) BB ER
BRAFIR(A )

Return on total assets BEEW (%)

(%) (note) (Hist)
Return on sales (%) (note) SHEWSR %) ([TEE)
Return on equity (%) (note) RS = (%) (HT5E)
Capital expenditure BEARAMS H

Note: Exclude interest income and rental income.

B B 2w S o0 A

O
HE_ZT-—ZTF-_A=1+—HILZ2XHRFE
KEBZBRA FF5.4%E 10,5385 & 7T
(ZZETNF  BH9,998EFHE L) - AN A=
& EEAFE R ABE1L007TEEL(ZE
THE - BEESOEE L) « HR17.1% ° ANEE
ZEFERI3A%ZFZNF 1 33.0%) * BMAF
IR NN0.4% c EEEEFRERAREGE R
fEE 26,0 ( ZE T NF « EHE22.01L) - EF
FHANRE - FEERR EAEABEE48.00L - &
FF 2 BH40.011380120.0% °

Ah i ZETE

SR TS S AL N9.5% R B 5,540 A &t —
TTNF - BHS5,058EE L) o BB AXEE
BT 752.6% XFBENR EFREMER
FIEREFE TR - FEHESR T EFMHS L
F-BH_ZETNFT+AZE_ZT—ZFE=F B¥
Ei& EFHiBB20% - REFEEAR FHRSE D
ERE EARAEGRERP - A2 - AREEHE
KB - RTAFZE 2 LLHISIK - NG 215
EMBIRIE EF T6.4% ° ERERINAI15% M
HESA EA17.6% WEB o RBEREZNE
FERIBHIAT

2008

—ZTN\F
5,058 5,386 4,627 4,258
21.2 21.3 19.1 18.0
776 910 664 503
992 1,108 837 665
13.7 14.8 13.7 11.0
15.1 15.4 14.5 12.2
18.9 225 20.5 18.1
104 216 468 148

Bret - TERFSRARBEZ KA -
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business

Sales of the business amounted to HK$4,960 million (2009:
HK$4,900 million), a rise of 1.2%, and accounted for 47.1%
of the Group’s total turnover. With restoration of consumer
confidence, the operating environment was more promising in
the second half year. Gross profit margin improved to 46.4%
from last year’'s 45.3%. The mainland China was still the best
performing market, and will remain the focus of expansion. At
the end of the year, the Singapore and Malaysia operations were
completely closed. In the period, the Group had continued to
dispose of those non-performing stores. At the year end,

(@) the business performance and the key financial ratios were
as follows:

(HK$'million)

(M EET)

ES AR 18D

ZERDHER

R EEBE4,960EBET(ZETNE
B4 900EBIT) ¢ EFF1.2% 0 Mk AEEBE
HRATA% - FEEHEBEOMEE  KERERT
FERE  ENERBEF 245.3%#EH546.4% °
FREAEDARBREME  THEEREESE
2ho RER - EBEFHMERERAEE 24
R BN AEEEERRKRBMEZESE - R
RERX

(a) EBRRARIBUBLLEFEINDT

2008
\F

Net sales HEFRE
Gross profit margin (%) EFE%)
Sales growth of comparable AJth[EMtHEER

shops (%) (note 1) b (%)(H1it1)
Operating profit (note 2) BERIE(HE2)
EBITDA BB HER
(note 2) EERAE (R E2)
Return on total assets (%) @& E & (%)
(note 2) (B1:t2)
Return on sales (%) SHE U (%)
(note 2) (B1:#2)
Return on equity (%) TSR (%)
(note 2) (Bizz2)
Capital expenditure BN

Notes:

(1) Comparable shops of a year include shops with full year
operation during the year and the preceding year.

(2) Exclude interest income and rental income.

4,900 4,239 3,625 3,444
45.3 49.1 47.8 46.5
6.5 21.4 2.9 (7.0)
160 242 21 (55)
279 364 147 62
5.5 2.1 (0.4) (3.6)
13 0.8 (0.4) (2.8)
235 26.2 (9.1) (77.5)
107 76 141 203
G

(1)  ALIEFERZFREF —F1H 2 FEE
HJEA

(2) T EEFERARBEUA -
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) ¥KEEEE)
Retail and distribution business (continued) ZERDHERE)
(b)  the analysis of turnover by major brand was as follows: (b) BEZREHEESTWT !
2010 2009
—E-BE & / ETE L =
Baleno R 2,311 1,589 1,584 1,596
S&K S&K 809 826 601 563
I.P. Zone |.P. Zone 639 528 441 361
ebase ebase 383 462 398 399
Others Hit 758 834 601 525
Total B 4,900 4,239 3,625 3,444
(c) the development in different markets was as follows: (c) BHTISERIBERLT
Mainland China B KBE
2010 2009
—E-ZF% NE =\
Net sales (HK$'million) SEEREEKEET) 3,834 3,124 2,431 2,219
Increase in net sales (%) SEEEE 21N (%) 23 29 10 13
Retail floor area (sq.ft.)** TEBEEBE(FIR)* 1,866,008 1,692,967 1,672,807 1,601,473
Number of sales associates** & & ESH * 10,701 10,442 11,089 10,119
Number of outlets*4 [EEEE * 3,828 3,477 3,347 3,143

Hong Kong and Macau

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease)

in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq.ft.)**

Number of sales associates** &&E&H +

Number of outlets**

Taiwan

Net sales (HK$'million)
Increase/(decrease)

in net sales (%)
Retail floor area (sq.ft.)**

Number of sales associates*#

Number of outlets*2

BEREREM

WEFR(EEEET) 402 404 476 496
wEFEzEN/
CRA) %) (1) (15) (4) 7
TEREER(FIR)* 6,131 63,957 74,907 78,285
398 396 447 624
[EEEE v 65 70 87 94
A

2010

= ;¢ F=E + / = N\ T
WEFREREET) 426 397 427 513
HERE N/

OR)(%) (7) (17 (8)
TERAER(FEIR)* 187,230 199,443 202,080 208,925
EEBHE 438 474 528 603
[EHZE * 194 217 259 266

Q3LIAIT SONIATOH VONIMXIL
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Retail and distribution business (continued)

(c) the development in different markets was as follows:
(continued)

Singapore

EMOREE)
ZERTEEL(E)
() BHTHBERERMT : (&)

03

Net sales (HK$'million) WEFHEKEET)
Increase/(decrease) WEFEzEN/
in net sales (%) CRA) (%)

Retail floor area (sq.ft.)** ZEERER(FIR)+
Number of sales associates** E&E&H +

Number of outlets*# JEEENE

Malaysia

166 233 221 175

(29) 5 26 14

24,877 43,149 61,601 55,781

157 318 456 408

23 44 64 56
R

Net sales (HK$'million) WEFHEEEET)
Increase/(decrease) WEFEEN/

in net sales (%) OB (%)
Retail floor area (sq.ft.)** TEERER(FrR)+
Number of sales associates*# & &88H
Number of outlets*# [EHEE +

* At the end of the reporting period
# For self-managed stores
A Including self-managed and franchise stores

Garment manufacturing business

Revenue of this associate decreased 11.5% to HK$1,277 million
(2009: HK$1,443 million). Net profit contribution to the Group
amounted to HK$42 million (2009: HK$53 million), a drop
of 21.0%. In the year, 80.7% (2009: 67.7%) of the fabric
consumed was supplied by the Group’s textile division and sales
to the retail division accounted for 20.9% (2009: 23.6%) of its
revenue. Gross profit margin dropped to 10.9% from last year’s
13.3%. Business environment was more challenging in the year
due to cost increase driven by inflation in wages and material
prices.

72 81 70 41
(11) 16 71 356
33,185 44,630 59,170 36,681
134 149 243 155
16 20 30 20

# BEE

A B S & RAIFEAE S

BREK

B S ETERA T R11.5%E B E12TTEE T
(BT NEFE : BE1,443FE7T) - HAREEF
mH B ASELEET(ZETNEF B3
BEL) B 21.0% c HFA - 80.7%(ZZEZE
T 67.7%) FERAME AN E B E - W
HETAEBTEBPIANEEHKARE20.9%(=F
THE : 23.6%) c EMEHEF 213.3% NEE
10.9% ° AREB R TERA LA - LEIRER
F ARSI o



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position. The
current ratio, the total bank debts and the gearing ratio as at
the year end were 1.9, HK$1,713 million and 0.0 (2009: 2.0,
HK$906 million and 0.0) respectively. The gearing ratio refers
to the ratio of the total interest-bearing debts, less of cash
and cash equivalents, divided by total equity. The increase in
bank borrowings was mainly for financing short term held-to-
maturity investments and bank deposits. The net cash inflow
from operating activities for the year was HK$797 million (2009:
HK$1,052 million). The drop in net cash inflow from operating
activities was mainly due to the increase in inventory level for
the hedge of the surge in cotton price during the year.

During the year, the interest cover, the trade and bills
receivables to turnover and the inventory to turnover for the
year under review were 118 times, 35 days and 75 days (2009:
26 times, 34 days and 60 days) respectively. The increase
in inventory turnover days was mainly due to the increase in
inventory level during the year for the reason stated above.
The Group mainly satisfied its funding requirements with cash
inflow from its operating activities and bank borrowings. At the
year end, the cash and cash equivalents, the equity attributable
to equity holders of the Company and the unutilized banking
facilities were HK$1,526 million, HK$4,573 million and
HK$3,074 million (2009: HK$801 million, HK$4,138 million
and HK$3,417 million) respectively. To maintain high liquidity
and improve the yield from its investment, the Group increased
its short term held-to-maturity investments to HK$273 million
(2009: HK$21 million) as at the year end. The counterparties of
the investments are all well established corporations.

Capital expenditure

As the global economic recovery was still moderate during the
year, the Group remained cautious with its capital expenditure
spending strategy. For the year under review, the total capital
expenditure incurred by the Group was HK$174 million (2009:
HK$216 million). HK$121 million (2009: HK$104 million)
was incurred by the textile business for the expansion of its
manufacturing plant and the addition of machinery. And, HK$53
million (2009: HK$107 million) was incurred by the retail and
distribution business mainly for the expansion of its retail
network in the PRC and the refurbishment of its existing outlets.

Pledge of assets
No significant assets were pledged as at 31 March 2010 and
31 March 2009.

BB Ko i

B AR R

RBESRMKEER
REBPEBEHIFRINT RN - REAFR -
MBIt R RITERBERELEBLED R
/1.9 BE1L7TI3EELKOO(ZZEZENF .
2.0 - B¥EQ06AEELNO0.0) - EXRABLLERTYIE
BB MR FEMBINE BRI EEZ
ZETE - EMBITEREEAIREESHKREHM
BEIHMNEE RIRITER - AFEELEEH
BERAFRERABEIOTEET(ZEZTNSF
FEHE1,052E BT © IMEFMBIRESRAFEER
L FERNFASEEEINFEKT SRR
FHEEIEER o

RAF - FISRELE - BRI B E KR
EREERAERENFERSEBRABEXRIED A
1185 - 35K RTI5R(—ZEZTNF : 2615 - 34
KKR6OK) - GERERHM LA  TEZHRFA
GEXKFALMERAM EFA - REBEEBLAKLE
FBRERAMRITERREEEEESNT
Ko MAFR ReRRSEEY  AQFER
FEEEREESRABSBRTEEEI ALK
1,526 A& 7T « B4 573AE L LBHES,0748
BL(ZZZNF  BH¥801HE T - 14,138
BETREEIMMTEER) - BRESREM &
EINEE R - ALESEBRRERBRNRE
MERFROBE27T3EEL(ZETNE B
1B BL) ZERERGHFHIRBROER
KIS -

BEARMTH

ARAFRAERCOEEIDRAN - REBEIFHE
AT HBERRE - RARFAN - AEEEARE
STHABEITAEET(ZESNF - Bk2168
B70) - HIBEBEAETE BEBI1215 8T
(ZZEZTNFE : BB104AEE L) T EFHNEE
RS RGN ES a8 i - TE R HEBREARMS
HABESIEET(ZEZNG : 1078 E
L) TEARBERTRETERE IR EENE
e

EEER
R-F-—FF=-A=+-HR=-FZFTNEFE=A
=t—B - UBEREECHFER -
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL CONDITION (continued)

Contingent liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2010 and 31
March 2009 have been set out in note 33.

Foreign exchange and interest rate risks

The Group continued to adopt a strict and prudent policy in
managing its interest rate and currency exchange risks. The
major interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group were HKD
floating rate borrowings with maturity due within four years. As
the economic conditions continue to improve, the interest rate
is expected to rise steadily in the coming year. To reduce the
interest rate risk, the Group will arrange financial instruments to
hedge the risk whenever appropriate.

During the year under review, the major assets, liabilities,
revenue, expenses and procurements of the Group were
denominated in HKD, USD, Renminbi, YEN, NTD and EURO and
the Group had arranged foreign exchange forward contracts to
reduce its currency exchange risk.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had about 23,800 employees
in the Greater China (2009: 23,900 employees in the Greater
China, Singapore and Malaysia). The remuneration of the
employees was largely based on industry practice and the
performance of individual employee.

OUTLOOK

In view of global economic conditions have been turning good,
the Group will exercise a more aggressive business approach
in the coming year. The total capital expenditure is budgeted at
about HK$260 million, out of which 70% will be for the textile
capacity growth and 30% will be for the retail outlets expansion.

The Group’s major going forward strategies are:

1. Continue to grow manufacturing capacity of the fabric
operation to enlarge market share. This would improve the
Group’s economy of scale and profit margins; and

2. Concentrate the retail expansion in the mainland China
market. This would enhance overall operating performance
of the business.

In healthy financial position, the Group has strong
competitiveness for continuous business development. The
management is quite optimistic to attain improved results in the
next year.

BREAR I (42)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) have pleasure in presenting
their report and the audited financial statements of Texwinca
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group’s principal activities during the year consisted of
the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and yarn, the
retailing and distribution of casual apparel and accessory,
the provision of franchise services and the provision of repair
and maintenance services for motor vehicles. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2010 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 36 to 128.

An interim dividend of HK22.0 cents per ordinary share was paid
on 20 January 2010. The directors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK26.0 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year, to shareholders on the Register of Members on
10 August 2010. This recommendation has been incorporated
in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits
within the equity section of the statement of financial position.
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B

MBEMPE
TRR/RAEENBELEAMBRFEZXENE
E BEEIBRRERZHRE  DEBACAM
ZIRERIHBRRRBRFEEHE D8 - It
MBI TEREEZIHHRR 2D

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements
and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.

RESULTS ]

Year ended 31 March
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REVENUE WA 9,997,737 9,669,206 8,298,552 7,749,112

PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRB AR 1,012,572 1,213,975 732,868 505,690

Income tax expense B (121,448) (254,843) (107,047) (70,473)

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR KEERER 891,124 959,132 625,821 435217

Attributable to: B

Equity holders /Nl 3

of the Company FiE%E 860,357 926,351 625,148 480,253

Minority interests DERERER 30,767 32,781 673 (45,036)

891,124 959,132 625,821 435,217

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS BE BEEIHRFES

As at 31 March
R=B=+-H
2010 2009 2008 2007
—E-EZ& ZETNE —TTN\E ZTTEHE
HKS’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BT BEFIT BT
TOTAL ASSETS BE®E 6,791,954 6,890,097 5,842,399 5,265,840
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEE (2,517,166) (2,973,812) (2,527,376) (2,335,891)
MINORITY INTERESTS DERR RS (136,825) (96,933) (66,943) (58,148)
4,137,963 3,819,352 3,248,080 2,871,801
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND ME - BERREERREYE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in

notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

REBRAFEZYE - BHEMREBERREYE
ZBEFE D RINN BN B HREMTE13 %14 -
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor,
are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 31(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for
cash distribution and/or distribution in specie amounted
to HK$400,729,000, of which HK$347,042,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and the capital redemption
reserve, in the amount of HK$393,895,000, may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% of the total sales for
the year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Poon Bun Chak (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Poon Kai Chak

Poon Kei Chak

Poon Kwan Chak

Ting Kit Chung

Independent non-executive directors:
Au Son Yiu

Cheng Shu Wing

Wong Tze Kin, David

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, all the existing
directors will retire and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and
Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, and as at the date of this report still
considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The service contracts entered into between the Company
and each of the executive directors as listed above may be
terminated by either party by giving not less than three months’
written notice or compensation in lieu.

Save as disclosed above, no director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of directors with reference to directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements, no
director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during
the year.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive directors

Mr. Poon Bun Chak, aged 62, is the chairman and the chief
executive officer overseeing the planning and development of
the Group. He founded the Group in 1975 and has more than 35
years’ experience in the textile field.

Mr. Poon Kai Chak, aged 60, is a younger brother of Mr. Poon
Bun Chak. He joined the Group in 1980 and has more than
30 years’ experience in the Industry. He is responsible for the
management of the manufacturing operations of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kei Chak, aged 58, is a younger brother of Mr.
Poon Bun Chak. He joined the Group on its establishment in
1975 and has more than 35 years’ experience in the field.
He is responsible for the purchases, sales and the overall
management of the Group.

Mr. Poon Kwan Chak, aged 64, is the elder brother of Mr. Poon
Bun Chak. He joined the Group in 1976 and has more than 34
years’ related experience. He is responsible for the Group’s
merchandising and sales management.

Mr. Ting Kit Chung, aged 54, is responsible for the general
administration and financial management of the Group. He
joined the Group in 1991 and has more than 10 years’ banking
experience. He holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from The
University of Hong Kong.

Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Au Son Yiu, aged 65, has extensive experience in the
securities industry. He is a director of The Association of
Former Council Members of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), a consultant to Dao Heng
Securities Limited (1989-2008) and a member of the Election
Committee for the financial services subsector election for
the 1998 Legislative Council. He is also an independent non-
executive director for several public companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. In addition, he is the ex-deputy chairman of The
Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited (1992-1994)
and ex-council member of the Stock Exchange (1988-1994). He
was appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company in July 1995.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Independent non-executive directors (continued)

Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, aged 60, is a director of Techluxe
Investments Limited. He holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and has more than 30 years’ experience in the banking
and securities industries in Hong Kong. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in July 1992.

Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, aged 47, is a director of CFL Anchor
Limited. He is also the founder and president of Berkeley
Club of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor of
Science degree from the University of California at Berkeley
and is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over 25 years’
experience in accounting, corporate finance, stockbroking and
fund management. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in March 2004.

Senior management

Mr. Chan Min, Samuel, aged 55, is a director of the Group’s
retail operations. He holds a Master’s degree in business
administration from the Northwestern University and The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology. He is a member of
the British Computer Society. Prior to joining the Group in 1996,
Mr. Chan had over 15 years’ experience in retail operations and
MIS management.

Mr. Chan Chi Hon, aged 48, joined the Group in 1997 and is the
Group’s financial controller and company secretary. Mr. Chan
holds a Master’s degree in commerce from The University of
New South Wales, Australia, and is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is a certified
practising accountant of the CPA Australia. He has more than 23
years’ experience in auditing and accounting.

Mr. Fung Wai Lun, Daniel, aged 53, is a director of the Group’s
retail operations. Before joining the Group in 1996, Mr. Fung had
more than 20 years’ experience in the retailing industry.

Mr. Wong Tung Yiu, aged 55, is the director and general
manager of Nice Dyeing Factory Limited, a subsidiary of the
Group engaged in the sale of finished knitted fabric and dyed
yarn. He joined the Group in 1994 and has more than 36 years’
experience in the textile industry.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SF0”")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model

Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers

(the “Model Code”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

B

ESRROREBRO 2ERRAR

w=

T-EE_A=1T—08 REKEHFEHEK

Bl 362{6 M 17 M B AL - SARBC LA
EFHTEFRZORETANRETAIDEM
ARF LR - REREANFRABELE
(R R(ES R AB R EXVED) KB AR S
KR -

RARBEBR IR

Number of shares held and capacity

BREERSH
Percentage
Through of the
Directly or spouse or Through Company’s
beneficially minor controlled issued share
owned children corporation capital
EART
HERAN [5%::<h
RREFRZ  HEREHDF BAEHE
Executive directors:  H/TEZE :
Poon Bun Chak 2 32,888,000  168,800,104%  456,450,0002 658,138,104 49.3
Poon Kai Chak EEE 8,202,800 — — 8,202,800 0.6
Poon Kei Chak AE 22,977,200 — 41,922,0000 64,899,200 4.9
Poon Kwan Chak EE 14,270,800 — — 14,270,800 1.1
Ting Kit Chung THRD 2,600,000 — — 2,600,000 0.2
Independent BAUFRITES :
non-executive
director:

Au Son Yiu [Egod 2 50,0004 — — 50,000 0.0
80,988,800 168,800,104 498,372,000 748,160,904 56.1

Notes: e -

(1) The 168,800,104 shares are owned by Farrow Star Limited, which is (1)  168.800,104 ¢ 5% (4 & Farrow Star Limited % &
wholly-owned by Perfection (PTC) Inc. as a trustee for The Evergreen 7% 2 ] All 3 Perfection (PTC) Inc. J{ The Evergreen
Trust, a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which include the family TustZ (ZEEA B 2 B » Z2EEET FHEA
members of Mr. Poon Bun Chak. These shares are held through his BB B LT KGR S o IRIE(EEREEE
spouse or minor children in accordance with the SFO. B » ZZRR 15 B ATTNE S Fo b 4 F L JE e o

(2)  The 456,450,000 shares are owned by Giant Wizard Corporation in (o) 456,450,000 f# & 15 & Farrow Star Limited # %
which Farrow Star Limited has an 97.15% equity interest. A 2.85% 97.15% % 7 1# 25 2 Giant Wizard Corporation 4 °
interest in Giant Wizard Corporation is owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak. Giant Wizard Corporation.> 2.85%%# 7 H1,EH SE 56 4

#E -

(38)  The 41,922,000 shares are held by Treasure Link International Holdings — (3) 2241 922,000 2 1% 17 &9 % 12 5% 4 R H 18 5 1F
Limited, in which Mr. Poon Kei Chak and his spouse each owned 50% % 50% # 725 2 Treasure Link International Holdings
equity interests. Limitedi% % -

4) Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, Mr. Au Son Yiu increased (4) R IR B F 16 - 3 48 JE 5 A 135 1 B AR 2 R 1

his shareholding in the Company by 50,000 shares to 100,000 shares.
This represents 0.0% of the Company’s issued share capital as at the
date of this report.

50,000/ £100,0004% + 11 AIE AR GEIR A& A
E#7THR70.0% °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Long positions in share options of the Company:

EERROREBEROG 2 EERKA
(#)
RARTRWAIEZ 7R

Number of options directly or

beneficially owned

EESERESREBRERE

Executive directors: BITES

Poon Bun Chak EWE

Poon Kai Chak EER

Poon Kei Chak R

Poon Kwan Chak EE

Ting Kit Chung THR
Independent non-executive directors: H FEHITES :

Au Son Yiu [ 2812

Cheng Shu Wing Elt S

Wong Tze Kin, David =EE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ interests and short
positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the
section “Share option scheme” below, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in the Company granted to any director or their respective
spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights
in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Further details of the Scheme are disclosed in note
30 to the financial statements.

9,500,000
9,000,000
9,000,000
9,000,000

400,000
400,000
200,000

37,500,000
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B MEEAEEARESENRBIRKFF
LERAEBARRRNRD MESOERN - 3
WERB|ITEUEEN ¢ AR B HEEAINE
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HHEHRE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) B8 )

The following table discloses movements in the Company's

share options outstanding during the year:

Name or category

of participant
saE
ERGER

Executive directors
YIEE

Poon Bun Chak
&z

Poon Kai Chak

A2

Poon Kei Chak

ARE

Poon Kwan Chak

A2

Date of grant of
share options*
BhE
BEAS

11 September 2002

“TERCENAT-R

11 September 2002

“EE-ENAT-R

26 March 2004

“EEMF=A-15°H

11 September 2002

“FEEAAT-R

26 March 2004

“ETME=AZTRA

11 September 2002

“EZ-ENAT-R

26 March 2004

“ETME=AZT5A

Exercise price
of share
options**
e
@
HK$ per share

4.97

4.97

5.60

4.97

5.60

4.97

5.60

At 1 April
2009

igmt 2 §:3

MA-H

Number of share options
BREYA
Exercised Forfeited
during during
the year the year
£ £R
B BEH

At 31 March

2010
R=%-2%
=A=1-A

1,000,000 (1,000,000) - —
7,500,000 (1,000,000) — 6,500,000
3,000,000 — — 3,000,000
10,500,000 (1,000,000) — 9,500,000
7,500,000 (1,500,000) — 6,000,000
3,000,000 - — 3,000,000
10,500,000 (1,500,000) — 9,000,000
4,000,000 (1,000,000) — 3,000,000
6,000,000 - — 6,000,000
10,000,000 (1,000,000) — 9,000,000

TEEBRENRATRITEZ BIREHED

Exercise period
of share options

ERETEDR

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012

‘2f FAAT-BE
“E-ZENATH

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
“ERCENAT-RE
“Z-ZENATH
26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
e S N=E
“Z-NEZA-THA

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
“ERCENAT-RE
“Z-ZENATH
26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
e S N=E
“Z-NEZA-THA

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
ZERCENAT-RE
“E-“FNATA
26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
i S N=E
“Z-NEZA-THA
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Name or category

of participant
2%
AR

Date of grant of
share options*
BRE

BiRA M

Executive directors (continued)

#7E%(4)
Ting Kit Chung

THE

11 September 2002

“ZZ-FARt-R

26 March 2004

“EEME=A-T5A

Independent non-executive directors

BUFHTES
Au Son Yiu

B2

Cheng Shu Wing

S

11 September 2002

ZZZENAT-R

26 March 2004

“ETMEZAZTRA

11 September 2002

ZZZZENAT-R

26 March 2004

“ETME-AZTRA

Exercise price
of share
options**
R
frfemmg*
HK$ per share

4.97

5.60

4.97

5.60

497

5.60

At 1 April
2009
R=ZBBNF
mA—-H

BRET &)

Number of share options

RREXE

Exercised Forfeited
during during
the year the year

R R
BT BHH

At 31 March

2010
R=%-2%
=A=1-A

4000000 (1,000,000} — 3,000,000
6,000,000 - —  6,000000
10000000 (£,000,000) — 9,000,000
42,000000 (5,500,000} — 36,500,000
200,000 - — 200000
200,000 - — 200000
400,000 - — 400000
200,000 - — 200000
200,000 - — 200000
400,000 - — 400000

Exercise period
of share options

ERETEDR

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
“ZZ-FNRt+-RE
“E-ZENATH
26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
S i N=E
“E-ME-A-1EA

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
ZZEENAT-RE
“E-ZENATH
26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
“ZENFZA-1/AZE
ZE-ME=A-1EA

11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
ZZZZENAT-RE
“E-ZENATH
26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
“ZENFZA=1/AZE
ZET-ME=AZ1+EA
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B

-
m
x
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BB ARSI () =
b=
Number of share options ,5
BREYE =
Exercise price Exercised Forfeited g
Name or category Date of grant of of share At 1 April during during At 31 March  Exercise period §|
of participant share options* options** 2009 the year the year 2010  of share options S
s L BEE  R-EELE ) B HE-95 i
ERGER R T MA-H BTk BEH ZR=t-BH BREGEHR FHF
HK$ per share
t
S
Independent non-executive directors (continued) Zll
BIFHTESH)
Wong Tze Kin, David 26 March 2004 5.60 200,000 - - 200,000 26 March 2004 to
25 March 2014
L) e s = ZTIRF=AZ15 A%
“E-RE=AZ1EA
1,000,000 - — 1,000,000
Other employees
Eftgs
In aggregate 11 September 2002 4.97 550,000 (300,000) - 250,000 11 September 2002 to
10 September 2012
At ZTRZENAT-A ZEIZENAT-RE
“Z-ZEAATH
26 March 2004 5.60 4,387,000 (1,597,000 (50,000) 2,740,000 1 April 2006 to
25 March 2014
“EERF=A15A “55/ EMA-RZE
“E-ME=A-THA
4,937,000  (1,897,000) (50,0000 2,990,000
47,937,000  (7,397,000) (50,000) 40,490,000
Notes: Kt

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant  * FEAR AR 1% H B3 B AR IR B IR 1 H R 27T (E BT 16
until the commencement of the exercise period. 1F e

#*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in  **  FERERTTIZ BRI L G EL 26 ZEAT AR 26 7 AR
the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the At G B AL BE R R TR o
Company’s share capital.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares R EFZERETE B HATH AR QT IE LW TH
immediately before the exercise dates of the share options was {BEASBEE7.317C °
HK$7.31 per share.
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B
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER FERRRHEMALTRARG RAEBRS
PERSON'’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND i

UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2010, the following interests of 5% or more of W_Z—ZFEF=A=+—8 UTHEELXAARE
the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in  ZEITIRARB%IA F 72 CEB(ESREE
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company  1§f11)5 336153 F SN RS B 22 A
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: RARGEBR IR

Number of Percentage of the

|
=
=
8
>
==
o
r
S
P4
[}
(%)
C
=
-
m
O
S
Sy
s
Vg
ot
pziif
E ordinary Company’s issued
i j

Capacity shares held share capital

HARQT BT

514 7 BEZEREE NS

Perfection (PTC) Inc. Trustee 2,3 625,250,104 46.8
ZEEA

Farrow Star Limited Through controlled corporation 1 456,450,000 34.2

ez VNC]

Directly owned 168,800,104 12.6
BEEEE

3 625,250,104 46.8

Giant Wizard Corporation  Directly owned 1,2 456,450,000 34.2
BEEHE

FMR LLC Through controlled corporation 5 67,060,000 5.0

FESIEHIR A

Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 4 22,977,200 1.7
BEIR FEILS
Through controlled corporation 4 41,922,000 3.1
FEXEHIAT
64,899,200 4.8
2 Long positions in share options of the Company: RARBERE 2R
<
5
= Number of Percentage of the
§ share Company’s issued
;' Capacity Notes options held share capital
B CENGIEE S
|HI| 514 Hiat HEBREHE e NERE
A
ﬂPlii Heung Mi Kuen Miraner Through spouse 4 9,000,000 0.7
HXEIR FENLB

Bebd
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSON'’S INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Farrow Star
Limited.

2. The interests of Giant Wizard Corporation in the Company were
duplicated by the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection
(PTC) Inc..

3. The interests of Farrow Star Limited in the Company were duplicated by

the indirect interests in the Company held by Perfection (PTC) Inc..

4. The interests of Ms. Heung Mi Kuen Miraner in the Company were
duplicated by the interests in the Company held by Mr. Poon Kei Chak,
whose interests are set out in “Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above.

5. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, FMR LLC, through
controlled corporation, increased its shareholding in the Company to
80,600,001 shares. This represents 6.0% of the Company’s issued
share capital as at the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, no person,
other than the directors of the Company, whose interests are
set out in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest
and short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

B

FTERRREMALTRRG REBEKS
s (2)

Bt

1. Giant Wizard Corporationf¥ 5 223 72 # 7 £2Farrow
Star Limited[@# 55 A2 A2 #am G IHEE

2. Giant Wizard Corporation 1% & 7% 2 7] 2 # #5 £

Perfection (PTC) Inc. [ #: 1 5 K 22 7] 2 ##a G 1HE
Zo

3. Farrow Star Limited#¥ B 7K 2 7,2 # z £ Perfection
(PTC) Inc.[FIEHBA RN A Z B GIHES -

4. BEIBRLIFHAL A B BB L FFHAR
Al B G IHEE o EHELL T B AR L
ZBERRG RIGER G #an KA -

5. RIFEEIRE + FMR LLCEESHEHI A AIE A RA LR
AR #280,600,001/8 + Ut EIE AR RIR A& H
B #7TR76.0% °

BEXAAEEEN R-F-—FTF=A=1—
B BEAL BEAXRESFERCHFUINES
R RARRER D 2 i SRR 19N - IRIBCRE %
N ENE 1M1 )5E 336 1% AE L AN AR A1) 348
B 2 B SRR
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B

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out in note
36(a)(iii) to the financial statements, disclosed in compliance
with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions
In accordance with Rules 14A.35 and 14A.45 of the Listing
Rules, the Group is required to disclose certain details of its
non-exempt continuing connected transactions in compliance
with Rule 14A.45.

(1)

)

Lease of a property as a retail outlet from a
connected person:

On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Mountain Rich Limited (“MRL”), a company
wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive director
and controlling shareholder of the Company, to lease
Tianjin Bin Jiang Fu Shi Commercial Building at Tianjin City,
He Ping Qu, Bin Jiang Road 282-286, Tianjin, China from
MRL as a retail outlet for the retail division of the Group
for a term of three years commencing from 1 April 2009
at the monthly rent of RMB748,000 per month for the first
year, RMB785,000 per month for the second year and
RMB824,000 per month for the third year.

Lease of a property as a director’s quarter from a
connected person:

On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Latex (Hong Kong) Limited (“Latex”), a
company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun Chak, an executive
director and controlling shareholder of the Company, to
lease 22 Perkin’s Road, Jardine’s Lookout, Hong Kong
from Latex as a director’s quarter of the Group for a term
of three years commencing from 1 April 2009 at the
monthly rent of HK$360,000 per month.

RERERS
ARAZEIFNTERER(BERERSNE
RARES ETRAN ETRAID) E14ATHE
R BMBMN I B RE M 36 ERER
5 WHRXSHEMER DIRATHIT -

(i) BAEEHATEES:

(i)  RR—AREHEGRET - AHAEEE
E XSGR NBERGE TG EBILE

(i) ZEXHEBEEEIZNHRIGTET
RHERAFER - WEAFERRAIBIRK

TERENITERERSFHE

% R BIE14A.35 X 14A 451638 F - ANEEA
FARBIANASIEEETER N ERELFH
EMDHRES -

(1) [FA—BEANLERE—YEIEBTEL
7
MR-ZETZNF=A=+HB  AEEHELE
BERARAR(NILE ] (BARARNRITE
ERIEREENREEREME)F A
EA44 | EARMNA T ERETMF
R8T 82825k — 2865k K # BT AR A
E - EAREETERDHEEBNTEE
H BA-TTNFEA—HRBRAH=F F
—F2ERAMEEAARKET48,0000T * E=
FrHRAHELAAREKT85,000L NE=F
2T RS A ARKES824,0007T °

2) [—BEALEAH-—YPEEESEERE
z

RIEZNF=A_+hH AEEHETIE
BERAR(ZED(AARRNATEER
BRBRREWELTEEERB)RFHEHES
#) - AR AEERE LB R E225
ERAKE-—EEEEZA -H_FFTh
FUA-—RERY=%F BAESREX
360,0007T °
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Details of non-exempt continuing connected transactions

(continued)

(3) Lease of a property as a training center from a
connected person:
On 25 March 2009, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Winson Link Enterprises Limited
(“WLEL"), a company wholly-owned by Mr. Poon Bun
Chak, an executive director and controlling shareholder
of the Company, to lease Room 4207B, 42nd Floor,
Metroplaza, Tower Il, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong from WLEL as a training center
of the Group for a term of three years commencing from 1
April 2009 at the monthly rent of HK$38,000 per month.

The Company has also received a letter from the auditors in
respect of the continuing connected transactions mentioned
above stating that:

(1) the transactions have received the approval of the boards
of directors of respective subsidiaries of the Group;

(2) the transactions for the leasing of the retail outlet, the
director’s quarter and the training center for the year ended
31 March 2010 agree with the terms of the respective
signed agreements; and

(3) the annual amounts of the transactions have not exceeded
the cap disclosed in the announcements of continuing
connected transactions.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

POON BUN CHAK
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2010

AR

FEBERZ#)
TRAZNFERERZHIT(E)

(3) [ —BHEAN LA —YFIEBZIF
Dy

RIZZEZNF=A=+HA  AEEEHKE
BAEBRAF(KEE]) (BARETNT
EENITREREN LA ERE)FR]
HEAL - Mok EARE B R HETS
$E2235F Al & E 5 — BN+ 1842078
= EAAEEREIFL c BZETNEF
MA—HR A= SRAHELAEE
38,0007 °
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SHE
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NERBEOZARE °
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The Group is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and enhancing corporate value and
accountability.

BOARD STRUCTURE AND BOARD PROCESS

The overall management of the Group is vested with the Board
and the day-to-day management of the business is delegated to
the executive management.

The principal roles of the Board are:

(1) to lay down the Group’s objectives, strategies, policies and
business plan;

(2) to monitor the performance of each operating segment;
and

(3) to set appropriate policies to manage risks in pursuit of
the Group’s strategic objectives.

The Board comprises of eight members. The five executive
directors include Mr. Poon Bun Chak, Mr. Poon Kai Chak, Mr.
Poon Kei Chak, Mr. Poon Kwan Chak and Mr. Ting Kit Chung.
The three independent non-executive directors include Mr. Au
Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing and Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David. Mr.
Poon Bun Chak is the chairman and the chief executive officer
(“CEQ”) of the Company.

The Company has in place clear Board process. Regular Board
meetings are scheduled at least four times per year. Agendas
and accompanying Board papers are served to all directors at
least 14 days in advance of each Board meeting to facilitate
informed discussion and decision-making. Directors may include
any matters they wish to discuss in the meeting in the agendas.
Draft minutes of the Board and committee meetings are
prepared by the company secretary of the Company. The Board
and committee minutes are kept by the company secretary
and are open for inspection by directors upon request. All
directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary, and are allowed to seek external professional advice
if needed. All directors are kept informed of the latest update of
the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements.

Newly appointed directors will receive a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of their appointment
so as to ensure that they have appropriate understanding of the
business of the Company and the obligation and responsibility
of being a director.

AEERBESSRENCEE R RREACEE
EMREAEE -

EEERBREEARR
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(3) EAKREREERFRHTAENBRAEE
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THEBSRE - Z(IBIFNITEEBRELRT
NAIEFEREFBLIE -
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INDEPENDENCE AND QUALIFICATION OF BAFHTEENBELIHRER
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three independent non-executive directors on  ARQATFE FHREIFE3.10(L)ENER - HESE
its Board in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. All &R A=ZBIENTESE - FIABIERITE
the independent non-executive directors possess a wide range SEEEAERNERERIMELR - Ah—()87
of business and financial experience. One of the independent JEHITESEEREAHATES AR Tx
non-executive directors, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, possesses &&A& FHHRAIFE3102ENENK - REE—-Z
professional accounting qualification in full compliance with Rule —ZF=A=+—HBI-45E - BB IERITE
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules. In accordance with Rule 3.13 of £ FMEBIFE3.13MGHEREB I -

the Listing Rules, all the independent non-executive directors

have confirmed their independence for the year ended 31 March
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2010.
BOARD AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS EEXEeRETEEEES
Attendance of Board and committee meetings during the year: FRLHEEGREESSHNE

Number of meetings attended/held during the year

FERBEEITERERE

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Directors Committee Committee Committee
= BEREES FMZEES REEEE
Executive directors HITES
Poon Bun Chak EHOE 4/4 N/ A A N/A“iE A N/ A3z B

(Chairman and CEO) (EEHE FARAETE)

Poon Kai Chak EEE 4/4 N/A7TE A N/AT 35 A N/AT3E B
Poon Kei Chak ey 4/4 N/ AT B N/ A7 N/ A7 i F
Poon Kwan Chak EE 4/4 N/A7E N/ATE B N/AE A
Ting Kit Chung THR 4/4 N/ A A 2/2 0/0

Independent non-executive B FEHTESE

directors
Au Son Yiu 4 4/4 3/3 2/2 0/0
Cheng Shu Wing S 4/4 3/3 2/2 0/0
Wong Tze Kin, David =EE 4/4 3/3 2/2 0/0
BOARD COMMITTEES EEXEE
The Board has established several board committees to oversee ZFEEKYHEEFZEGUERARFER]
certain aspects of the Company’s affairs. FEEIHE -

EH+E—F = 0TOC LH0d3YH TVNNNY
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee consists of the three independent non-
executive directors namely Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David, Mr. Au Son
Yiu and Mr. Cheng Shu Wing. The committee is chaired by Mr.
Wong Tze Kin, David, a qualified accounting professional. At the
time of establishment, the terms of reference and duties have
been laid down as a guideline for the committee. The principal
duties of the committee include:

(@) monitoring the preparation of the financial statements;

(b)  monitoring and assessing the internal controls system of
the Group;

(c)  monitoring the performance of Group’s internal audit team;

(d) considering the appointment and removal of the external
auditors, the audit fee and the terms of engagement; and

(e) reviewing and commenting on the connected transactions
of the Group.

The committee held three meetings during the year to review the
followings:

(a) the internal controls and risk management of the Group;
and

(b) the financial reporting process and the financial
statements of the Group.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee consists of three independent
non-executive directors and one executive director namely Mr. Au
Son Yiu, Mr. Cheng Shu Wing, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David and Mr.
Ting Kit Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired by Mr. Au
Son Yiu. At the time of establishment, terms of reference and
duties have been laid down as a guideline for the committee.
The committee is responsible for making recommendation on
the Company’s policy and structure for all the remuneration
of directors and other senior management, and reviewing and
approving compensations payable to directors. The remuneration
of the directors and other senior management is determined
with reference to the performance of each individual and the
Company, the market conditions and the industry practice.
Besides, the committee will ensure that no director or any of
his/her associate may be involved in the determination of his/
her own remuneration. During the year, the committee held two
meetings to review and approve the remuneration adjustment
and performance bonus of executive directors and other senior
management.

EREES
ERZESRRE-RBINTEE  HHARE
BRELE  BRAREENBHREL - EERE
EREZBENER  BEEXEHER - KL
- ZESHA PR IGXRBEMREES -
ZESTIZRARRE

(a) EEFMBHMARMORE

(o) EENFEAKREANEZRES

(c) ERAEEANFFEZIRR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-
executive directors and one executive director namely Mr. Cheng
Shu Wing, Mr. Au Son Yiu, Mr. Wong Tze Kin, David and Mr. Ting
Kit Chung, respectively. The committee is chaired by Mr. Cheng
Shu Wing. The Nomination Committee is responsible for the
recommendation of candidates with appropriate experience and
qualification to become members of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of the Listing Rules
as the Company’s code of conduct for dealings in securities of
the Company by the directors. Based on specific enquiry of the
Company’s directors, they have all complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting
period covered by the annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET
OUT IN THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES (THE “CODE”)

In the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with
the code provisions of the Code contained in Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules throughout the financial year, except for the
following deviations:

(1) Under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and be
subject to re-election.

All the existing non-executive directors of the Company
are not appointed for a specific term, but are subject
to retirement and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with Clause 86(1) of the
bye-laws of the Company.

(2) Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have a policy of separating the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the Board.
The Board considers the current arrangement can help
maintaining a strong management position and at the
same time improving the communication efficiency. The
Board may consider the separation of the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer upon the then circumstances.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE PROVISIONS SET

OUT IN THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRACTICES (THE “CODE”) (continued)

(3) Under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of
the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

The chairman of the Board of the Company has delegated
the duty of attending the annual general meeting to an
executive director of the Company. The chairman considers
the executive director a suitable person for taking up such
duty as the executive director has been serving for similar
duties for many years and he has good understanding of
each operating segment of the Group.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, fees paid for audit and non-audit services by the
Company were as follows:

Services

RS

BIRHE = RS
BIRRMIEER R

Audit services rendered
Non-audit services rendered

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for preparing the financial statements
of the Company. The statement from the external auditors of
the Company about their responsibilities has been set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on page 34.

REVIEW OF THE INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls is defined as the internal
control procedures with which the Company uses to ensure the
accuracy of its accounting records, safeguard the assets of the
Company and ensure the compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations. The Board is responsible for maintaining efficient
and effective internal controls of the Company. During the
year, the internal audit team, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the internal controls of each major
operating segment of the Company and has reported its findings
to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is satisfied with
the effective internal controls of the Company.
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Fee paid/payable
BftEBAER
HK$’000
JBFoT

2,470

2,470
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To enhance the communications with shareholders
and investors, the Company has adopted the following
communication channels:

(1) meeting shareholders in the annual general meetings
to explain the results of the Company and answer the
questions of shareholders;

(2) disseminating corporate information to shareholders
according to the rules and regulations;

(3) meeting fund managers to promote the business of the
Company; and

(4) publishing the background, the latest development and the
results of the Group on the Company’s website.
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
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To the shareholders of

Texwinca Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Texwinca Holdings
Limited set out on pages 36 to 128, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street, Central,

Hong Kong

28 June 2010
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
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Year ended 31 March 2010 ZiZ —F—FF=A=+—HIFFF

REVENUE
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Other operating expenses, net

Finance costs

Share of profit of an associate,
net of tax

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY (HK cents)

Basic
Diluted

Details of the dividends for the year are disclosed in note 11 to
the financial statements.
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Notes

Hiet

10
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2010 2009
—g-%F

—TTNF
HK$°000
JBEEF T

9,997,737
(6,701,346)

HK$’000
EBETFT

3,296,391

187,064

1,012,572

(121,448)
891,124

860,357
30,767

891,124

64.8
N/A i
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ]
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Year ended 31 March 2010 ZiZ —F—FF=A=+—HIFFZ
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2010 2009 z
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—E-EF —ETNF -

HK$’000 HK$’000 g
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(7]

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REEHF 891,124 S

=1

m

(w)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith2mEUWA o

Exchange differences on BREBIMESEEBEEZ m

translation of foreign operations PE N Z=%8 37,425

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR ZNEE2EUTA ;%f

THE YEAR ptc) 928,549 Eu

Attributable to: BB -

Equity holders of the Company KATIERTELE 10 888,657
Minority interests DEMEE 39,892
928,549
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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2010
—g-%F

HK$’000
EBETFT

2009
—TTNF
HK$°000
JBEEF T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENRE 13 2,308,792
Investment properties REME 14 120,199
Prepaid land lease payments FEN A ER 15 24,422
Construction in progress TEEZIE 16 119,283
Trademarks mE 17 33,293
Interest in an associate BN A 2 S 18 111,271
Held-to-maturity investments BEAEHNEE 20 70,056
Long term rental deposits REHSES 93,979
Total non-current assets BIERENEE 2,881,295
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories e} 21 1,656,095
Trade and bills receivables FEURBE T % FE 24 22 919,511
Prepayments, deposits and YENEIE - TTE R

other receivables HAbEUBRTK 471,346
Held-to-maturity investments FREIHMIRE 20 20,987
Derivative financial assets TTHEemEE 23 41,920
Cash and cash equivalents RER[ESEEY 24 800,800
Total current assets BRENEE 3,910,659
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Due to an associate FETHE & AT 19 11,231
Trade and bills payables JERERR R FE AR 25 958,516
Other payables and accrued liabilities — EMERERZNEEE 26 303,073
Derivative financial liabilities MEeHBRE 23 12,188
Tax payable FESHIE 300,084
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITE R 27 398,930
Total current liabilities BREaE 1,984,022
Net current assets BB EFE 1,926,637
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBBE 4,807,932
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NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BERITE R 27 506,914
Deferred tax EREFIR 28 26,230
Total non-current liabilities BIEREEE 533,144
Net assets FEE 4,274,788
EQUITY fE=
Equity attributable to equity holders A TREFZFEE
of the Company FEih R
Issued capital BEITRR A 29 66,360
Reserves s 31(a) 3,779,617
Proposed final dividend Bk R HIRS B 11 291,986
4,137,963
Minority interests DERRER 136,825
Total equity 1A 4,274,788
Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung EF 2
Director Director BEWIE THA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2010 ZiZ —F—FF=A=+—HIFFF

2010 2009
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HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT ABETIT

g
2
8
>
T
o
r
=4
=z
(2]
(%]
=
=
=
m
(]

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REMBRERNE
ACTIVITIES
% Profit before tax B AT F 1,012,572
FF; Adjustments for: PR -
Finance costs WS E R 8 40,855
af Share of profit of an associate, FE(REEE R REH
> net of tax CREdEiE=] (53,499)
ul Interest income FLEMA 5 (55,051)
Net fair value gains on foreign INESTAESR T A
exchange derivative financial DARERE
instruments SFEE 5 (42,049)
Net fair value gains on investment KEYEN BN
properties FER 14 (2,873)
Depreciation e 6 335,878
Recognition of prepaid land lease AT HEER 2
payments 1R 6 664
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE - BEK
plant and equipment RAEEE BB 6 2,600
(Write-back of provision)/provision RAFEREE(ER),/
for slow-moving inventories TR 6 13,735
Write-back of impairment of FEUBRFRE
trade receivables (gl 6 (1,109)
1,251,723
Increase in inventories FEEn (82,755)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and JFE U BR TN N PR U i
bills receivables A,/ (H5hn) 99,483
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,  FEFTEIE « 5T R EAD
deposits and other receivables FEMER TR A, (3 n) 12,247
Increase/(decrease) in an amount due  JE{THE& A FIE N
to an associate (B) (8,910)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and JEASTBRFN N FE ST =2 AR 18 hn/
bills payables CR) (35,345)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables  H b ERBEF &%
and accrued liabilities EEta &M CRd) (60,479)
> Cash generated from operations REERE 1,175,964
§ Profits taxes paid BFEHR (124,404)
% Net cash inflow from operating LERFRERA
§ activities FEE 1,051,560
Y
S
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=
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Interest received

Proceeds from disposal of derivative
financial instruments

Dividends received from an associate

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment

Additions to construction in progress

Purchases of held-to-maturity
investments

Redemption of held-to-maturity
investments

Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment

Decrease/(increase) in long term
rental deposits

Decrease/(increase) in time deposits
with original maturity over
three months when acquired

Net cash flows from/(used in)
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Issue of new shares

Repurchase of shares

New interest-bearing bank borrowings

Repayment of interest-bearing bank
borrowings

Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing

activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Foreign exchange adjustments

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

RETDHHRESRE

BYFIE
HETEeRTA
WA
2 R RIIRE
BEWE BEXK
HBEE
FETIRZAE
HEREEHR
wE
fE 135 2= 5 2 Ay
"E
HEME BER
JEBER WA
EHfEcSEERLD
(3h0)

Year ended 31 March 2010 #Z % —

Notes

Hiet

13
16

PRI B =1{E A A E2IH

ZEBETRL

(&)
REZBHHRLST/A

()38
METHRSRE

BT
B
HilM B RITER
A BIRTT

35

EHFIE

EHBE
REZBRERA,
(Rt

RERRESEEYZ

10 h0E 4

RENZ RS RIS
Z(EY)

SNEBE

REXZRSR
RELMY

29
29

»%

2010
e

HK$’000
EBETFT

EHEeRER

EEZA= AR

2009
—TETNF
HK$°000
BT

55,051

55,214
48,000

(163,407)
(52,722)

(91,043)

6,403

25,379

496,086

378,961

4,633
(3,989)

3,512,560
(3,854,266)

(40,855)
(570,690)

(952,607)

477,914

321,531
1,355

800,800
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 March 2010 ZiZ —F—FF=A=+—HIFFF

2010 2009
—g-%F  —TIAA

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
iz BETFT ABETIT
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ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity
within three months when acquired
Non-pledged time deposits
with original maturity over
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

Less: Non-pledged time deposits

with original maturity over
three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated
in the consolidated statement of
cash flows

RERASSEMEYS

S

B RETES 24
WETY B =EANES
A

T3 24
RATSIA=AAMU £
5|52 4R 5

e 24

RelReEEY
WEN A TS
DTE S

B RETZH=MEAE

2| H 2z SR
EREK

ReMREEEY

WENFARE

mER

196,582

604,218

800,800

800,800



COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries R EEPNGIR = 3
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments TERTFIR
Dividends receivable FEU AR B,
Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY
Total current assets BRENEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Accrued liabilities [EETEBE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M EERITE R
Total current liabilities BREaE
Net current assets MEVEEFEE
Total assets less current liabilities REERTEAE
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings M B ERITE R
Net assets FEE
EQUITY fE=
Issued capital BB TRR A
Reserves G
Proposed final dividend BORAREANR S
Total equity WL

Poon Bun Chak Ting Kit Chung

Director Director

32

24

27

27

29

31(b)

11

EF
BWE

AASTEURE S IS

31 March 2010

2010
—z-%5

HK$’000
EBETFT

2
THEE

—E—FF=A=+—H

2009
—TETNF
HK$°000
BT T

1,411,287

148
200,000
128

200,276

720
161,333

162,053
38,223
1,449,510

238,000
1,211,510

66,360
853,164
291,986

1,211,510
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A B R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—ZFF=H=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Texwinca Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business
of Texwinca Holdings Limited is located at 16th Floor,
Metroplaza, Tower IlI, 223 Hing Fong Road, Kwai Chung,
New Territories, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following
principal activities:

. Production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and
yarn;

. Retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory;

. Provision of franchise services; and

. Provision of repair and maintenance services for
motor vehicles.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties, certain
leasehold land and buildings included in property, plant
and equipment, and derivative financial instruments,
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 March 2010. Adjustments are made to
bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may
exist. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases. All income, expenses and
unrealised gains and losses resulting from intercompany
transactions and intercompany balances within the Group
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

ARIER
EKEEEBR AR ABRETMKIZE
RAR - AR R ZEMPEEE AClarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11 -
Bermuda ° Bk EEBER AR EZ & Eith
HEAB BN BE S K223 e EiS
FEELNE

WAREE - AEBEEEEUTER :

A AR 2 R

EIRESMZTER S -

o RERNFFEERT &

o RUUAEHRERRERE o

AABHRERDIRBEB LG AGEMZE
BUBHREEN(REMAT BN BREE
A BEGFEARRE)  BE-RIA
S RARBBRRGE 2 REZ KR
Xk - RIREYE - BOEEEYE - BE
REBHANEE T REFRITESRTA
BRARERES  RNPEHRRIKRIRIAK
AEtEOIFRE - BREBERIN - AR
BRIAEE (B2 AREST
BREAZTR -

HEEXE
RENBHREBEAQNARENBAREZ
—EETF=-A=+—RALFEZHHR
o LEEL AR UMEEARIEFEZ TR
SEHBER - - MBARZEERKER -
BIAREEESIETEY ARRE  EEEH
TR IEZ BALE - FTEARSEEARZH
RS BWA » THERABEREBSRASE
E QR ZBESREELR AR EEH -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net
assets of the Company’s subsidiaries.

2.2

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

HKFRS 1 and HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 2 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 18 Amendment*

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1
Amendments

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time

Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-

based Payment - Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures —
Improving Disclosures about
Financial Instruments

Operating Segments

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to Appendix to HKAS

18 Revenue — Determining
whether an entity is acting as a
principal or as an agent

Borrowing Costs

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial

Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations
Arising on Liquidation

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—ZF#=H=+—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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A B R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—ZFF=H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
HKAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded
Amendments Derivatives and HKAS 39

Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
— Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers (adopted from
1 July 2009)
Improvements to Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs (October HKFRSs
2008)* *
£ Included in Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 (as issued in May
20009,.

** The Group adopted all the improvements to HKFRSs issued in
October 2008 except for the amendments to HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Plan
to sell the controlling interest in a subsidiary as they are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009.

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact
of HKAS 1 (Revised) and HKFRS 8, the adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial
effect on these financial statements and there have been
no significant changes to the accounting policies applied
in these financial statements.

2.2 SBERRREZS8 (9

B (BEREHRE B (ERTBHRERE
REZEE)- ZEEg)-R2EFN
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AR E-mARITE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised) introduces changes in the presentation
and disclosures of financial statements. The revised
standard separates owner and non-owner changes in
equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only
details of transactions with owners, with all non-owner
changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition,
this standard introduces the statement of comprehensive
income, with all items of income and expense recognised
in profit or loss, together with all other items of recognised
income and expense recognhised directly in equity, either
in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The
Group has elected to present two statements.

HKFRS 8, which replaces HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about
the components of the entity that is available to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of
information about the products and services provided by
the segments, the geographical areas in which the Group
operates, and revenue from the Group’s major customers.
The Group concluded that the operating segments
determined in accordance with HKFRS 8 are the same
as the business segments previously identified under
HKAS 14.

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—ZF#=H=+—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—ZFF=H=+—H

o
Y
§ 2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG 23 EEMEMKRERZEBUBRE
2 KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 28|
,5 The Group has not applied the following new and revised REBEWEN AR EMTIIE 8
% HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, i BB ARERZ R REIER] BB ISR
@ in these financial statements. HAER o
=
@ HKFRS 1 (Revised) Firsttime Adoption of Hong Kong BEMBHREER  BRERB B BRE
Ei.j Financial Reporting Standards? S (IBET) AR 1
e
HKFRS 1 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time BEMBREL]  BEBRELEFEL5R
ot Adoption of Hong Kong Financial FLRUBETA) BN BT SRS
A3 Reporting Standards — Additional BB - EREAEZE
ul Exemptions for First-time ONERGR Z (BT 2
Adopters?
HKFRS 1 Amendment Amendment to HKFRS 1 Firsttime EEMBHEED  BEIBREEFELR
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial F1HR(ERIA) BINRRB BT HRE
Reporting Standards — Limited R — BRI E B
Exemption from Comparative ERELERE TR 2
HKFRS 7 Disclosures for the BHUBE T2 ARE
First-time Adopters? BR 2B 4
HKFRS 2 Amendments  Amendments to HKFRS 2 BEMTFHREER  BEFBREELFE25R
Share-based Payment — Group 25k (BRI A) ERBRENZ I —5%
Cash-settled Share-based BLARSEE 2 ER
Payment Transactions? BRIEZ[FHNR S (EF] 2
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations? ERMEwERER  EKEH

F3|(EERT)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments¢ BANBMEEN SpIAS
el
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures$ BHSERFE245; MEALEE
(#&&3T)
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate HEg AR IR G RIBI BT TSR 2
Financial Statements? BT (KUERT)
HKAS 32 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 32 Financial B5g AR BAEERE2NER
Instruments: Presentation — 3257 (185 A) IH: 25-#koE

= Classification of Rights Issues? pACHE
zZ
c
>
- HKAS 39 Amendment Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial B G ER BRGERE3RERE
g Instruments: Recognition and 395k (55T AR) IR : BRRFE-
3 Measurement - Eligible Hedged BEEENT A 285 1
§ ltemst?
(=]
|l N P
] HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 A (BERTHEE B8 (RENBRERE
,l)lﬂ Amendments Prepayments of a Minimum REZES)- ZER)REF14HHE
E Funding Requirements RREE14% EXNHEERERZ
e CHES) EHE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets

to Owners?

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments*

Amendments to HKFRS 5 Amendments to HKFRS 5
included in Improvements  Non-current Assets Held for Sale
to HKFRSs issued in and Discontinued Operations —
October 2008 Plan to sell the controlling
interest in a subsidiary?

HK Interpretation 4 Leases — Determination of the
(Revised in December Length of Lease Term in respect
2009) of Hong Kong Land Leases?

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has issued
Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 and 2010 which sets out
amendments to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view
to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording. The
amendments to HKFRS 2, HKAS 38, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2009 while the amendments to HKFRS 5,
HKFRS 8, HKAS 1, HKAS 7, HKAS 17, HKAS 36 and HKAS
39 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2010 although there are separate transitional
provisions for each standard or interpretation. The
amendments to HKFRS 3 and transition requirements for
amendments arising as a result of HKAS 27 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010 while
the amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS
34 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2011.

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—ZF#=H=+—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

g
=
&
>
25
o
r
o
Z
[}
(7]
c
=
—
m
O
B
o
e
i
i
<
B
al

0T0C 14043y TVNNNY

YhhE—&

52

A B R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—ZFF=H=+—H

2.3

2.4

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2010

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Group considers that these new
and revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary, in which
the Group has a long term interest of generally not less
than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is in
a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of an associate is included in the consolidated
income statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
The Group’s interest in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associate is eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associate, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
an associate represents the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets acquired,
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at the
date of acquisition.

Goodwill previously eliminated against the
consolidated retained profits

Prior to the adoption of HKICPA’s Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 “Business Combinations”
(“SSAP 30”) in 2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was
eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the year
of acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill
remains eliminated against the consolidated retained
profits and is not recognised in the income statement
when all or part of the business to which the goodwill
relates is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets, investment properties and
goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and
certain financial assets is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control over
the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

() the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Company;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (c)
or (d); or

(f)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than investment
properties and construction in progress, are stated at
cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciation.

Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to
cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to the income statement. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the
asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous
valuations is transferred to retained profits as a movement
in reserves.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost or valuation of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The estimated useful lives used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold land
and buildings

25 years or over the
remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements Over the remaining lease

terms
Plant and machinery 10-20 years
Furniture, fixtures 5 years
and office equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years
Yacht 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating lease
for property which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course
of business. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If the property occupied by the Group as an
owner-occupied property becomes an investment property,
the Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Trademarks

The useful lives of trademarks are assessed to be
indefinite. Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are
tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level and are not amortised. The useful
life of trademark with an indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues
to be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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POLICIES (continued)

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. When the lease
payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and buildings elements, the entire lease payments are
included in the cost of the land and buildings as a finance
lease in property, plant and equipment.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. For fabric and yarn, cost is determined
on a weighted average basis and, for work in progress
and finished goods, cost comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
For casual apparel and accessory, cost is determined
on a weighted average basis and includes all costs
of purchases and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
further costs expected to be incurred to completion and
disposal or to make the sale.

Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition when financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus,
in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, held-to-maturity
investments, other receivables, long term rental deposits
and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the income statement. The
loss arising from impairment is recognised in the income
statement.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments when the Group has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in the income statement.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed
to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses
them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or
continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in @ subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account.

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—ZF#=H=+—H

24 FESHBENBRE %)

TREERE®E)
HEBIEHFARCEE
IR EHERATIRNEREEMS - &A%
BELEERENEERERNEREREEN
BESEERERFEREREE @ FEHR
BREREREER o WMAKERERIESR
AEEEHENESREE(EREART)IE
EERBBNFERE  AZBEEERA
—HEERUEERRFENEREENR -
Y HFAFAZACREETEFERE - &
ERIFHERE R R ERIED THR SR
BRARNEETSMASRBRENGZ
A o

WA TEEBRBRENHBEREESE  BEER
CRHRZEERAEEGHRRAERE
(MEERRBRNEEER)RENEZET
o AR RRA S RENREASREEN
[RIa BER A = (BN &R MRSt E R B A
)RR - WEFILFBMEGE - BIFTE
Eﬂﬁ@@ﬂaﬁ’ﬂﬂ&ﬁ%Z%EEEEB?%%J%@ e

BEREEAESGRBGE R HERE AR
e S EENERPRER o FSRAZE
HRE R ERER - B ERER
ERANURARRBESRENFERE - &
RIRATRE B BEREERK - BN
1538 A (E (AT AE RA X & A 8 o

R AR AR - EEHRER BRI SR TIER
ﬁﬁ&%@fﬁ?*iﬁ’]%ﬁibﬂiﬁd” RIlSE A AE
03RR (B RS 1E AT A R B A R AR B IR

g
2
8
»
25
o
-
=)
P4
(2]
(%)
C
=
=
m
O
\;‘e;
s
i
ot
pziif
]
Il

0T0C 14043y TVNNNY

GhbE—&

61



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—ZFF=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 FESHEERNBZE®)

g
=
&
>
25
o
r
o
Z
[}
(7]
c
=
—
m
O
B
o
e
i
i
<
B
al

0T0C 14043y TVNNNY

YhhE—&

62

POLICIES (continued)

Derecoghnition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss or loans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, due to an associate, other payables, derivative
financial instruments and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate method amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the income statement.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecoghnition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For financial
instruments where there is no active market, the fair value
is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of
another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation models.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except

3 where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

I B R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—Z#=H=+—H

24 FESTHHENHRE %)

FRig®i (&)

EERBATINABETE iR mEHRL
BEMABZHARRERERERERER
& FREEMERZ FrE G I E R R
o

BEERIRR BRI ARG REZE T A
BN - HETFIERRID -

o FRVIRER AR (LIFE—IAE
Baf) 2BEBERBBEEE ZRER
HAE  MRZARXZETER T
EetaMkERNBEE - &

o IRPIRENHEB A F K N R PTE
EZERABEREEE  2EREE
B BEE A TG - I TR R
EENARZARRISEDE -

BRERREERMMA ARG R EER - R
1 AT 2 BORE AT AR 1R T AR -
MEAE PR B T HE E 78 JE AR50 4 A6 DA S0 8 AT 00K
ERMER - RERFEEREARERBEA
BRI THER - ETSIERIN

s AHAMREREERZELEHEER
ERRNRER AR5 (LIF—A
EXBat) cBEXRE  MNZA
RHETERIZESTHEN X R
BUm N ERE &

s EBEREEERNERENHEBARR
BERR BRI ERE - HEE
RAEFAEER A R 2 RKA B E
By 1 22 R I T BE 7B B SR B0 ) DA S 8
TR A T AR

g
2
8
»
25
o
-
=)
P4
(2]
(7]
C
=
=
m
O
Loy
HEF
i
ot
pziif
]
al|

0T0C 14043y TVNNNY

GhtE—&

65



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A Bs R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—ZF=H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4 TESHEERIBZE %)

g
=
&
>
25
o
r
o
Z
[}
(7]
c
=
—
m
O
B
b
e
i
ot
Pzl
B
Il

0T0C 140d3d TVNNNY

YhhE—&

66

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Government subsidies

Government subsidies are recognised at their fair values
where there is reasonable assurance that the subsidy will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the subsidy relates to an expenses item, it
is recognised as income over the periods necessary to
match the subsidy on a systematic basis to costs that it is
intended to compensate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and
bank balances and time deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank
balances, time deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are not restricted as to use.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated withownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) from the rendering of services, when the services
have been provided;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(d) franchise and royalty income, on a time proportion
basis, over the franchise periods; and

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest rate method by applying the rate
that discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial instrument
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as
a separate allocation of retained profits within the equity
section of the statement of financial position, until they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s bye-laws grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Employee benefits

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of the
shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting
is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition,
which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not
the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are
satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the Group
or the employee are met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph. All cancellations of equity-settled
transaction awards are treated equally.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 April
2005 and to those granted on or after 1 April 2005.
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POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
overseas are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
schemes. The contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

BEREF 2

RIKIEF )
REERBERGIENESFEIED - BAE
EEBRERL —HERRTRBINERAE
MErEI([RiEEs &) - RRBESFEIZ
BRA HRREEEAFEZETAEDL
B - RN AFER - BRESFE
MEERBYEEZESHAR - WEAEE
ZEENF - NEBEFL 2 BEHKEAG
ERAN2HRESR

AEERNSINEE B ARNERGES
AR T3 BRI AR L KRR KRB R 2
ZEWBRRAREIERAZETEAL
AR RBEARRIEFTBIE G - RIgZH
FRRREBIOHRE - HRR BN B ER
HARAHIER ©

BERA

Wit - BRI EREREE(ARERE
BB AERUE iR S N E B E ) B1h
MEREERAKERENMUERZETEE
EVERDARAS o B EARBRIEREE iR
& AREEERSEEELERNME - BHE
fEERBIEEEREEN AT BIERER
BEFREA - @B EMEER ARSI
B o FTE EMEERANGRE S BFE X -
EERABENEREBREAESMES
HEARPIAR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency. Each entity in the Group determines
its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded
using their respective functional currency rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the
presentation currency of the Company at the exchange
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by the
Group.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions
could be sold separately (or leased out separately under
a finance lease), the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Impairment of assets

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining
whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the asset impairment no longer exists, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred that may
affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could material affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes worldwide.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Impairment of trademarks

In accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”,
the Group determines whether trademarks are impaired
at least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the trademarks are related. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of useful lives of trademarks

The Group assessed the useful lives of previously
recognised trademarks. As a result of this assessment,
the trademarks were classified as intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives. This conclusion is supported by the
fact that the Group’s trademark legal rights are capable
of being renewed indefinitely at insignificant cost and
therefore are perpetual in duration, related to well known
and long established fashion brands, and based on future
financial performance of the Group, they are expected to
generate positive cash flows indefinitely. Under HKAS 38
“Intangible Assets” the Group re-evaluates the useful lives
of the trademarks each year to determine whether events
or circumstances continue to support the view of the
indefinite useful lives of the trademarks.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) by reference to current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and
location (or subject to different leases or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences; (ii) recent prices of
similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and
(iii) independent valuations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the production, dyeing and sale of knitted fabric and
yarn segment;

(b) the retailing and distribution of casual apparel and
accessory segment; and

(c) the “others” segment principally comprises the
provision of motor vehicles repair and maintenance
services and the provision of franchise services.

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit
before tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that
interest income and finance costs are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude time deposits and interest in
associate as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank
borrowings, tax payable and deferred tax liabilities as
these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—ZF=H=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, EEBEEERSE)

(continued)

(a) The following tables present revenue, profit (a) TREAEEHEZE-_T—TF=A
and certain assets, liabilities and expenditures =t+—HEZEZNF=A=+—H
information of the Group for the years ended 31 IEFEZWA - m5FERIBHEE - 8
March 2010 and 31 March 2009: BRI HER
Group £5

Retailing and
Production, dyeing and ~ distribution
sale of knitted fabric  of casual apparel

|
=
=
8
>
==
o
-
S
P4
[}
(%)
C
=
-
m
O
e;aT
s
g
af
i
B
and yam and accessory Others Eliminations Consolidated

HEARBDZESREE  ERREUZIERIH ity He Fr]
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%% “E-%% 5 ZB-Bf 5 ZB-%F F ZB-%f F

HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
EBTR Vil A 7 ERTr EBFR V-t

Segment revenue: AR -
Sales to external EFHR
customers B 5,058,110 4,900,311 39,316 9,997,737
Intersegment sales HERZHEE - - 4,744 -
Other revenue HlA 66,125 56,439 9,449 132,013
Total Bt 5,124,235 4,956,750 53,509 10,129,750
Segment results NEEE 775,955 160,057 9,467 944,877
Interest income FISWA 55,051
Finance costs BKER (40,855)
Share of profit of an EEBENFE
associate, netof tax 7 - Bi4FE 53,499
Profit before tax BBATR R 1,012,572
Income tax expense B (121,448)
Profit for the year REERF 891,124

0T0C 140d3Y TVNNNY

E—&T

=

Bebd

76



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.

(a) The following tables present revenue, profit
and certain assets, liabilities and expenditures
information of the Group for the years ended 31
March 2010 and 31 March 2009: (continued)

Group (continued)

Production, dyeing and
sale of knitted fabric
and yam
SHEARBD ZEHRER

2010 2009
—e-%5 #
HK$'000 HK$'000
#8FT i

Retailing and
distribution
of casual apparel
and accessory
ERRAN 2 BER A

A B R T R

31 March 2010 —Z—ZF#=H=+—H

EESTREN)
(a) TERARAEEEZ-_T-TF=A
=+-BR-FEAF=A=1—H

IEFEEZRA R
AR HER (&)

LENEE &

£®(E)

Others Eliminations Consolidated
Hfty HH Er

2010 2009 2010 2010 2009 2010 2009

cg-%% -TINE
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT ETR

-8-%fF -2-%%
HK$'000
V-t

Assets and liabilities: ~ ZERSME
Segment assets "*Eéﬁ 4,763,420 1,658,060
Interest in an associate  RBFAATIZES
Unallocated assets FAOREE
Total assets BEE
Segment liabilities PEER 565,173 1,162,637
Unallocated liabilities i AEEE
Total liabilities BaE
Other segment up ]
information: g8
Depreciation and nER
amortisation B 215,974 118,847
Capital expenditure EREH 104,362 107,346
Other non-cash EfgResi
expenses/(income) / (BA) 12,834 2,214
Fair value (gain)/loss on  REWERL(E
investment properties 2,155

(hz) /B (5,028)

(b) Geographical information
The following table presents geographical revenue
and non-current assets information of the Group
for the years ended 31 March 2010 and 31 March
2009:

Group

USA Mainland China Japan

Hong Kong Others

—B-%%
HK$'000

HK$ OOO HK$'000 HK$'000
V-t 7.

_HK$'OOO
wis s

178,805 (523,820 6,076,465
111,271

604,218
6,791,954

1,285,009
1,232,157

2,517,166

73,834 (516,635)

1,721
4,421

- 336,542
- 216,129
178 - 15,226

- (2,873)

(b) HIHHE
TRAAEBHEE-_ZT—ZTF=A
== a&_;;n¢ A=+—8H
IEEE 2R A RIFERBEESE
e

&£E

Eliminations Consolidated

B PEARE LS ) A H¥ &4

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010
—g-%F \F ZB-%F F ZR-%F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BRFL  EFTT  BRFL B V-t V-t e

(i) Revenue from extenal SREFKA
customers

Segment revenue: ARUA

2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

\F Z2-%F = £ Z2-%F "ITNEF

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000
i} V-ta Vit ada T ERFR

9,997,737

Sales to external ETHR
customers 2F

(ii)Non-current assets: ~ FERBEE

Non-current assets  3ERETAE

2,881,295

3,633,173 3,931,690 855,595
2,387,481 -

590,247 987,032 -
541,803 127,763 (175,752)
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.
(b) Geographical information (continued)

The Group’s geographical revenue and non-current

assets information are classified based on the

locations of the markets and assets, respectively.

(c) Information about a major customer
No single external customer contributes more than
10% to the Group’s revenue during the year.
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for
returns and trade discounts; the value of services rendered
and franchise and royalty income.

An analysis of the revenue, other income and gains is as
follows:

Revenue:

Sale of goods
Rendering of services
Franchise and royalty income

Other income and gains:

Interest income

Net fair value gains on foreign
exchange derivative financial
instruments

Gross rental income on investment
properties (note 14)

Compensation from landlord for early
termination of leasing agreements

Compensation from supplier for
defective goods

Net fair value gains on investment
properties

Scrap sales

Government subsidies

Sundry income

WA
HEE M
AR
FratiE e REFIRA

E AN Rz
FBEUA
SNESTE S BT B

INELI 6
HEE
BEMERSWALE
(Ftata14)
EEFRPLLERLY
MESEE
R EESHER
e
BEMERRE
&y
BREHE S
TR Bk
AU A

LEIRER @)

(b) D E(E)
EEILHRARIERBAEER D
BRI R EEZ ISR -

(c) —BEXEEEFZER
ANER - BEE—HINAREHALL
REBR M AL0%IA L -

WA ~ bl AR Wz
WA - DRAEEERE  EHRRERE
PI% 2 HEHTFE - FIRERBHE
ERE TS REFILA -

WA~ BB ARRESESTIAT

Group
&6
2010 2009

—F—%F —TTHEF
HKs’000 HK$’000
BT BT

9,906,399
77,417
13,921

9,997,737

55,051

42,049
8,944
12,943
10,713
2,873
2,695

2,472
49,324

187,064
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—
m
x
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBIADEF §
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEEZBRBADEFEHBR (ML) E
(crediting): <]
=)
%
Group 2
% =
2010 2009 S
= —ZZhE g
Notes HKS’000 HK$'000 %
HizE B FIT BT
Cost of inventories sold* EEEY A 6,701,346 E
Depreciation e 13 335,878 ul
Recognition of prepaid land AR THEER 2
lease payments R 15 664
Employee benefits expenses, REBHFAY - 21F
including directors’ EEME (Hi27) -
remuneration (note 7):
Wages, salaries and other IE - HekEf
allowances pesity 1,172,645
Retirement benefits schemes RIKERETE
contributions T 8,503
1,181,148
Minimum lease payments under EERE TN 2R
operating leases in respect of BFHEHET
land and buildings F=Jz2! 640,493
Contingent rents under operating  &EHE T 284
leases e 357,246
Minimum lease payments under — &EHE T 2 BiRE L%
operating leases in respect of =EHAE
plant and machinery pg=c! 4,248
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENE S 2,861
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - BMENERE
property, plant and equipment HEEE 2,600
Net foreign exchange gains, PE 3 W) 558 - TRfE
excluding net fair value gains SNEDTAE S Bl
on foreign exchange TEAREREE
derivative financial instruments SFEE (931)
Net rental income on investment  {&&YERSUA >
properties et (7,947) 2
(Write-back of provision)/provision 77 &4 (#0E]) F
for slow-moving inventories Y= 13,735 E
Net fair value gain on investment  &&EMEALE ’_%,
properties W R 14 (2,873) :?3:
Write-back of impairment of trade  FEUBEZRRIE |°|
receivables el 22 (1,109) ]
_FH
_FH
H
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A Bs R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—FF=FH=+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6. KRBIANGEF(#)

# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$522,830,000 (2009: # EEEYZKAFEIZEBHE THA - 77
HK$483,919,000) relating to staff costs, depreciation, minimum E HEHETZREHLEARRHEFE
lease payments under operating leases and write-back of ZE ¥ 0] 5 5522,830,0007T (—FEENEF -
provision for slow-moving inventories which are also included in JE#483,919,0007T) + ZFE % BRI _EF
the respective total amounts disclosed above for each of these 1EEIE B RIAE 7 5% o

types of expenses.

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7. EEMeRIURSEHFHMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BT EMRA BB RRNEFE1611E
the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange and Section 161 rFEEESHe 2 REBEAT ¢

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:
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Group
&8
2010 2009

—g-8E  —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T

Fees: e
Executive directors HITES 50
Independent non-executive directors BN IFITESE 810
860
Other emoluments: HEH< -
Executive directors: HITESE -
Salaries, allowances and e MR
benefits in kind JEIRERF 36,150
Performance related bonuses* FIRBMEIEAT* 57,810
Retirement benefits schemes EREFETE
contributions Tk 60
94,020
94,880
* The executive directors of the Company are entitled to * AR AIBITEFEZ B THBENEERNEE
discretionary performance payments not exceeding a certain HERIBR TR i T E BB X (1 KR A EG7EAT ©

percentage of the profit after tax of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7.

HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

Au Son Yiu
Cheng Shu Wing
Wong Tze Kin, David

[ 541R
B
Eam

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2009: Nil).

(b) Executive directors

2010 —E-ZF

Poon Bun Chak  &fl2
Poon Kai Chak &2
Poon Kei Chak E=
Poon Kwan Chak %92
Ting Kit Chung THR

2009 —ZENF

Poon Bun Chak EWE
Poon Kai Chak EEE
Poon Kei Chak EHZ
Poon Kwan Chak #&#52
Ting Kit Chung THSR

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind
e RBR

e FREEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BN

A B R T T

31 March 2010 —ZF—FF=H=+—H

ESsMERANERSHMES @)

(a) BIKEHITES
RERNEXNTBIIERTEEZHA
£

2010 2009
—g-85  —TINF

HK$’000 HK$°000
BETFT EEFT

270
270
270

810

RER TE(CZETNF BB
IFTTEE N EMME

(b) HTE=S

Retirement

Performances benefits
related schemes Total
bonuses contributions remuneration

RE BIRER
HTEA FHEMER [ X
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT BT T

10 11,556 28,180 12 39,758
10 5,798 7,515 12 13,335
10 7,981 7,515 12 15,518
10 5,093 7,515 12 12,630
10 5,722 7,085 12 12,829
50 36,150 57,810 60 94,070
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A Bs R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—FF=FH=+—H

7. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 7. EEMeRIEfRsSHFMES 2
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Executive directors (continued) (b) HBITEE(E)
There was no arrangement under which a director I R E N A EE S R B E (A
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during B H 2Bk o
the year.
The five highest paid individuals employed by the AN AEBEERFMALTREFAZE
Group during the year were all directors, details of X HEMRAS 250 L -

whose remuneration are set out above.

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMKEA

|
=
=
8
>
==
o
-
=4
P4
[}
(%)
C
=
5
m
O
S
A i
o
Vg
af
i
B
il

Group
%£H
2010 2009

—g-8F  —TINF
HK$’000 HK$’000

BETFT JBEMF T
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts ZBRAERNEEBEEHIRETT
wholly repayable within five years BB B 40,855
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. HiE
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BRENEHERFEFRARBE AR GETER
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits TR MATE & 16.5%( —BE N4 : 16.5%)
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits RS - EEMNERERFEGHIE - T
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of IRARANES B 37 A S PR M & 2 IR AT SR 5t
tax prevailing in the locations in which the Group operates. Ho

2010 2009
—g-85  —TIAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT EETFT

Group: 55 :
Hong Kong and the Mainland B R R B KRR IE
China taxes:
Current year provision AN 112,354
Overprovision in prior years A EEHERE (522)
Deferred tax (note 28) EIEFRIB (AT 728) 9,616
Tax charge for the year REFRE 121,448
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31 March 2010 —ZF—FF=H=+—H

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 9.
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to

the tax charge for the year is as follows:

BIR(#)

BERAARR RENBRRMERR 2GR
B B BOR AR R AT 2 BIR R S A
BRI T

2010
—2-BF

2009
—ETNF
HK$’000
JEEF T

HK$’000
BE T

|
m
x
=
8
>
25
o
-
=)
4
[}
(7]
C
=
-
m
O
S
\II
o
i
ot
Pzl
S
]

10.

Group: 55 :
Profit before tax AR 1,012,572
Tax at the domestic tax rates BEREWETERL

applicable to profits in the A R ER

countries concerned i 50,561
Adjustments in respect of current MEEERNEHHIE

tax of previous years kS (522)
Profits attributable to an associate FE(LESE AN TR (10,780)
Income not subject to tax BBEHL 2 AN (1,899)
Expenses not deductible for tax AAERIBIRZ B 40,029
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the g7 [E A B} B A &) 7] {

distributable profits of the Group’s I F B 10% BT AR

PRC subsidiaries (note 28) =8 (1171 28) 21,579
Unrecognised deferred tax assets FIEEE 2 R HERIRLT

on tax losses TRIBEE 28,378
Tax losses utilised from EBABTER 2 BIE

previous periods K518 (3,924)
Others HA (1,974)
Tax charge for the year RNEERIE 121,448

The share of tax attributable to an associate amounting
to HK$9,307,000 (2009: HK$11,833,000) is included in
“Share of profit of an associate, net of tax” on the face of
the consolidated income statement.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company for the year ended 31 March 2010 includes
a profit of HK$196,303,000 (2009: HK$189,607,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company (note 31(b)).

10.

FE{G B A R R TE &8 19,307,000 (=
TE R LFE ¢ B811,833,00070) Bt ALRAE
FER 2[R E QBN F] - BREEFHE ]
EF' o

D AR TR E SRR

HE-_T-TE=A=1+—RHIFE &2
AR FTE & BIGAE A BN ARERA
A),2 B 153k N 2 s M) 7S #5196,303,0007T
(ZZBT N4 : #1189,607,0007T) (HizE
31(b)) °

EH+E—F = 0TO0C 14043 TVNNNY
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11.

12.

DIVIDENDS

11.

3=\

2010 2009
—e-%F  -FThE

HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT

Interim of HK22.0 cents FEAE AR 122,011l
(2009: HK18.0 cents) per share (ZZZTNF : B%18.01L) 238,940
Proposed final of HK26.0 cents ORISR E 6 26.010
(2009: HK22.0 cents) per share (ZZZNF - B%22.010L) 291,986
530,926

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the years
ended 31 March 2010 and 31 March 2009 have been
calculated as follows:

(a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of the basic earnings per share
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
ordinary equity holders of the Company and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share
amount for the year ended 31 March 2010 is based
on the profit for that year attributable to ordinary
equity holders of the Company. The weighted average
number of ordinary shares used in the calculation
is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
that year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares assumed to have been issued at no
consideration on the deemed exercise of all share
options into ordinary shares during that year.

12,

REE IR 2 RERR S AF AR R PIREN
RRITHBREAFAE L@s -

BEALCRERRSMAESR
27

—TEF=ZRA=+—HBE=_TTNF=A
=+ —HIEFEZEARAREEE 2 SRAF
FTEAT

(a) EXBRER
EAXGRBANTIRA AR EBESA
BERGZFRENMNFADET
BRB L NP REGTE -

(b) HHEERBREF

BE_ T ZF=A=+—-RHILFE
HEEEREBRANDIZZFRE ZAR
A EBESMA & RIS ZFR RN
H - ARFTEFASBITEARRZN
BB ARG EERS AT
ZIB REGERZF AN ARETT
15 P B RCHE 75 B B AR A D P 19 X
2 o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12.

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY (continued)
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share are
based on the followings:

Earnings ZF|
Profit attributable to ordinary equity

basic earnings per share calculation  Z

Shares i)

Weighted average number of shares in RIEtEERGRERN
issue during the year used in the basic FRE BTG IE
earnings per share calculation TIIRRE

Effect of dilution — weighted average BE 7 HE - INETY

number of ordinary shares: TRARARE
Share options e
* No diluted earnings per ordinary share is presented for the

year ended 31 March 2009 since the exercise prices of the
share options of the Company outstanding during the year are
higher than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary
shares and, accordingly, they have no dilutive effect on the basic
earnings per ordinary share.

RATEBERFTEE G
holders of the Company, used in the  &#H| - FIEStEEAREGKR

I B R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—FF=H=+—H

BEARAERRESERAESR
BRI

EARREER BRBAFENT

2010 2009
—2-BF

—ZTTNF
HKS’000 HK$’000
BET T JBHEF T

860,357

Number of shares

BAYE
2010
—g-%5

1,327,029,255

N/A* A
N/A* AN *

ZEENF= A=A —HILFEIE
P FREE L TR EBRET] - BB
RAIRZFARITIEFERIERTTIEE
BERAR B EBRFE 518 -
BRI B A7 IR A R T AL
o
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-
=
2 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERRE
E Group £5
=)
5 ,
> Fumiture,
8 Leasehold fixtures Motor
% land and Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles
ﬁ buildings  improvements machinery equipment and yacht
% B 48
S HELH HE HE RBAE RER
i REF BFEE R#H BT i 4 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00 HK$'000
Et T I T FEFT
pziif
2 31 March 2010 —E-2£=fA=1-f
al|
At 1 April 2009: RZZZNENA-R:
Cost or valuation ARG E 1,218,961 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,683,995
Accumulated depreciation  EZHTE (339,359) (445,009)  (1,370,969) (164,887) (54,979)  (2,375,203)
Net carrying amount REFE 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
At 1 April 2009, net of RZZTHNEWA-B -
accumulated deprecation BRZGTE 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
Additions RE 5,380 40,683 77,869 10,624 8,351 142,907
Disposals e (3,848) (2,210) (6,183) (1,745) (835) (14,821)
Depreciation provided FRTE
during the year i (50,290) (71,822 (164,790) (23,345) (10,741) (320,988)
Transfers from construction ~ HEETIREA
in progress (note 16) (#iit16) 86,731 - 8,574 - - 95,305
Transfer to investment BARENE
properties (note 14) (Hiit14) (2,948) - - - - (2,948)
Foreign exchange adjustments J[E% 4,454 1,507 3,665 318 77 10,021
At 31 March 2010, net of
accumulated depreciation 919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268
At 31 March 2010:
Cost or valuation KASEE 1,306,198 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,686,400
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (387,117) (294,771) (1,541,094) (178,626) (66,524) (2,468,132)
Net carrying amount REE 919,081 103,465 1,127,179 41,651 26,892 2,218,268
Analysis of cost or valuation: B [EEDHT :
At cost B 1,292,596 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,672,798
At 31 March 1992 R-AA—5=F=1+-H
valuation fhE 13,602 - - - - 13,602
1,306,198 398,236 2,668,273 220,277 93,416 4,686,400
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  13. ¥1% - BMERRE &)

g
=
=
Group £5 g
S
Furniture, %
Leasehold fixtures Motor 8
land and Leasehold Plant and and office vehicles %
buildings  improvements machinery equipment and yacht ﬁ
B 2B =
AR L e HE R#AE #ER L
5% £ BFEE R#H B i 4 FF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT ; T i i :Elr
Pzl
31 March 2009 —2eNEZf=+-7 L
]
At 1 April 2008: RZZZNFNA-R:
Cost or valuation Ak EE 1,118,318 593,994 2,501,484 211,726 82,558 4,508,080
Accumulated depreciation  EitiFE (288,884) (451,843)  (1,202,474) (146,199) (51,222)  (2,140,622)
Net carrying amount REFE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
At 1 April 2008, net of RZZZTN\EMA-B-
accumulated deprecation Bl RetHTE 829,434 142,151 1,299,010 65,527 31,336 2,367,458
Additions RE 854 89,919 42,606 19,889 10,139 163,407
Disposals & - (4,224) (1,900 (1,626) (1,253) (9,003)
Depreciation provided FRE
during the year B (46,118) (91,137) (162,394) (25,851) (10,378) (335,878)
Transfers from construction ~ HEETREA
in progress (note 16) (Hrit16) 83,942 - 1,493 183 - 85,618
Foreign exchange adjustments  4\EF% 11,490 (1,402) 29,229 (2,323 196 37,190
At 31 March 2009, net of W_ZENE=A=1-8"
accumulated depreciation BHRZTE 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
At 31 March 2009: W_ZENEZF=t-8:
Cost or valuation RASEE 1,218,961 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,683,995
Accumulated depreciation ZiHTE (339,359) (445,009) (1,370,969) (164,887) (54,979) (2,375,203)
Net carrying amount FEFE 879,602 135,307 1,208,044 55,799 30,040 2,308,792
Analysis of cost or valuation: RS EEAT :
At cost KA 1,199,285 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,664,319
At 31 March 1992 R=AN-F=R=t—H
valuation fhE 19,676 - - - - 19,676

1,218,961 580,316 2,579,013 220,686 85,019 4,683,995
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
An analysis of the leasehold land and buildings at 31
March 2010 is as follows:

2010
—2-2f

1992

Professional
valuation Cost

-Ah=F
EXfHE BA&
HK$'000 HK$'000
AEFR BETFT

Medium term leasehold land A S 2 e
and buildings situated in HELTH

Hong Kong RigF
Medium term leasehold land ~ fRAE LIS Z

and buildings situated PHEE LY

outside Hong Kong REF

Certain medium term leasehold land and buildings were
revalued in 1992 by independent professionally qualified
valuers. Since 1993, no further revaluation of the Group’s
leasehold land and buildings has been carried out as
the Group has relied upon the exemption granted under
the transitional provisions in paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
“Property, plant and equipment”, from the requirement
to carry out future revaluations of its property, plant and
equipment which were stated at valuation at that time.
Had such leasehold land and buildings been carried at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation, their carrying
amount would have been approximately HK$6,203,000
(2009: HK$7,191,000).

Certain leasehold land and building situated in Hong Kong
occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
became an investment property during the year. The
difference at the date of transfer between the carrying
value and the fair value of the property of HK$1,469,000
is accounted for as a revaluation and has been credited to
the asset revaluation reserve.

13. W% - BERRE )

R-ZE—TFE=-A=+—HAzHELHNE
FAWWT

1992
Professional
Total valuation Total
—hN=F
&% EXfifE A ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT ; BEFT BETT

19,676 101,443 121,119

- 1,097,842 1,097,842
19,676 1,199,285 1,218,961

HOPBHEEL M EREFER —NAIL_F
KB BETEMETER - AEEH
—NMN=F  WEHEAES - HRIEF
EE— T EFIHE  BIRES G EAE
1655 Y13 « R/E R a% 15 1 25 SOAER 1R 1 5
X - B AEEEREBEARNYE - K
B REEENN B RBEE - WzEHE
Tt RIEFIRE R KAR R TESIRR - &
BRI (B JE %) 575 # 6,203,000 ( —ZZ 1,
£ B¥7,191,0007T) °

BN EBSHANEBMUEEEAREREE
W E T RIEFRFRBREREYE
ZEVEREEBNREELEA R BB
1,469,0007TZ%8 * EEREMAR - W&
SR EEEAFEED -
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

—

2

=

8

>

fn

Group g

L] z

2010 2009 2

—E-EF —ETNF =

HK$’000 HK$’000 ]

BEF T BT G

i

Carrying amount at beginning of year  REYIEEE 123,208

Net gain from fair value adjustments DA ERAEHW S FEE 2,873 g

Transfer from property, plant and BV - BE REEEA "?';

equipment (note 13) (H15#13) - 4
Foreign exchange adjustments P& A% (5,882)
Carrying amount at end of year REREEE 120,199

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 —ZE—FF=FH=+—H

14. BEWHE

8k ® B A& & % 104,700,000 T ( = &
T N &F ;B ¥ 72,310,000 T ) K& B

The investment properties with carrying value of
HK$104,700,000 (2009: HK$72,310,000) and
HK$50,470,000 (2009: HK$47,889,000) are # 50,470,000 L (Z T T S F : B
situated in Hong Kong and Taiwan, respectively. All 47,889,0007T ) B)3& E WD BIN R &S K&
investment properties are held under medium term B o IREMEZEILZREALNFTE - RE
leases. The investment properties with carrying value {EA781104,700,000TT 2 8B YET HE
of HK$104,700,000 were revalued on 31 March 2010 E2ZERERMSP B EUER
by the directors with reference to the current prices of HREBR_E—TFE=-A=1+—HELHER
similar properties in an active market at nearby locations DRMEZR  FEMTERNERBHIESS
adjusted to reflect those differences; as well as recent RIABYERNRIATKR(E - B R R
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with FRBERSAHREERAEBEEEE - N
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions —E—ZTF=A=+—H  EEEABE
since the date of the transactions that occurred at those 50,470,000 CRIIE EMEREE BEEK
prices. The investment properties with carrying value 2Rl E DB T EEG BB S =
of HK$50,470,000 were revalued on 31 March 2010 T AR RIS REEEETS
by Colliers Internationals, independent professionally o WEMETIAREHNATE=E 5%
qualified valuers, on an open market, existing use basis. ME RSB TERMTEE34(a) °

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are

included in note 34(a) to the financial statements.

FARRBEENMEZHERARESR
B MR TO7T,000 L ( —ETNE : B
8,944,0007T) (fizE5) ©

The gross rental income earned from the investment
properties during the year amounted to HK$8,707,000
(2009: HK$8,944,000) (note 5).
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—
Y.
§ 15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. ST iEER
o
=
g Group
z 55
g 2010 2009
= —E-%F —EThEF
S HK$’000 HK$'000
& EEFT BHTFTT
w
Carrying amount at beginning of year ~ REYIEEE 25,471
ot Recognised during the year FAER (664)
‘?‘; Exchange realignment PE 1 IR 279
4 Carrying amount at end of year RERREE 25,086
Current portion included in RENE D BN B FUE -
prepayments, deposits and A& REMPEL
other receivables SN (664)
Non-current portion JEMENER (D 24,422
The above leasehold lands are all held under medium term LA EZ & T g AR BRFR A58 RARE
leases and are situated outside Hong Kong. FELAGN T o
16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 16. IR
Group
£E
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBEFT BT T
At beginning of year =) 148,701
Additions NE 52,722
Transfer to property, plant and BEME - BEMERE
equipment (note 13) (H13£13) (85,618)
Foreign exchange adjustments SN S EE 3,478
At end of year WER 119,283
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17. TRADEMARKS 17. BE

Group
&8
2010 2009

—F—%F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT

|
m
x
=
8
>
25
o
-
=)
4
[}
(%)
C
=
=
m
O
ga?
Loy
Hi
i
a
=
Pzl
S
al

Cost and carrying amount at end RERKA K
of year BRTEIE 33,293
18. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. REE N F 2=
Group
58
2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYFT BEFT
Share of net assets FE(EEEFE - 111,271
Particulars of the associate are as follows: kN = S (Tl
Percentage
of ownership
interest
Particulars of issued Place of incorporation  attributable to
shares held and operations the Group Principal activity
HEERITRAMN A S K AEBELER
& =30 Bt EEEK
Megawell Industrial Ordinary shares Hong Kong/Mainland 50 Manufacture of
Limited of HK$1 each China and Vietnam garments
(“Megawell”)
BEHBERAR SRETEREELT B8 PEAERYE PRIKEEE
([MEED
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18.

19.

20.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of Megawell extracted from its financial
statements:

Assets AE
Liabilities BE
Revenues N

Profit after tax Brifi& a7

DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on agreed credit terms.

HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS

Listed investments in elsewhere, REAMM S FHaIRE -
at amortised cost b mE: i) I WIN

Unlisted investments, at amortised cost 3f_Fi%E& - #2855

RSB

BN

Non-current portion

Current portion

The investments have an aggregate nominal value of
HK$272,079,000 (2009: HK$90,816,000), bear interest
ranging from 0.35% to 4.70% (2009: 1.20% to 5.45%) per
annum and will mature within one year. The amortised cost
of the held-to-maturity investments have been computed
as the amount initially recognised minus principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation
using the effective interest rate method of any difference
between the initially recognised amount and the maturity
amount. At the end of the reporting period, the fair values
of the held-to-maturity investments are not materially
different from their carrying amounts.

. REEE QR 2w (8)

TREF B EEMBRK 2 HBER
EngE

2010 2009
—e-®5  -—TTNG

HK$’000
BT

HK$’000
JEEF T

529,856
276,434
1,443,156
116,241

. BNBELQT

eSS R R R TV EIEAR - BB R
R BREE K

5

. BFEIHHRE

Group

£E
2010 2009
—z-%F “EThF
HKS’000 HK$’000
BEF T BETT

37,043
54,000

91,043
(70,056)

20,987

ZEEREFTAE A B 272,079,000 7T
(ZEZThF : #%90,816,0007T) * F &
ENT0.35%E4.70%( —FZNF : 1.20%
£5.45%) 2 WK —FAENE - F=
E|ER)IE B 2 B AN R E TR 16 TR
RNESERECDEENARS Bl ESRE
FRERAEEE VR ERSREI A
R =R R HRETE - R ER
FEIHNREN A EHEARAET RS
REEH o
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20. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS (continued) 20.

None of the held-to-maturity investments are either past
due or impaired. The financial assets included in held-to-
maturity investments relate to receivables for which there
was no recent history of default.

21. INVENTORIES 21.

Raw materials =t
Work in progress FRMS
Finished goods BN
22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22,

Trade receivables FEUTER IR
Bills receivable R E
Impairment NENIE]

Payment terms of the Group’s customers mainly range
from “cash before delivery” to “within 90 days from the
date of invoice”. A significant portion of the customers
trade with the Group under documentary credit terms.
The Group seeks to maintain strict credit control on its
outstanding receivables and has a policy to manage its
credit risk. Since the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 —ZE—FF=FH=+—H

REINPHNRER)
ZREIPOREREBRIRE - 2R
FEZNHWRETNEREE - BIEEN
FLERHYE MR R o

rE

Group
&8
2010 2009

—F—BF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT

799,843
95,371
760,881

1,656,095

AR R B R

Group

£
2010 2009
—E-%F —ETNF
HKS’000 HK$’000
YT BETFT
561,142
360,074
921,216
(1,705)
919,511

AEEEFIERYPAIAREEIEIHER
RENIORA] - R BEAIMNEAER
MREAEEETRS - AEEHRKHIAE
E—EREERFIENEREERR - AR
AEEREERERRZES  BHAKHE
WEBBANEERTER - BURRKADIEH
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22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BWERAKEWEE®)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at RMEIR - IREE RS RINREER ZE
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date R R BN RIE AR B A ATIAT -

and net of impairment, is as follows:

Group
2010 2009

=F-RF It ) K2
HK$’000 HK$'000
BMTT BMTT
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Within 90 days 90HIN 899,897
Over 90 days 90H AL 19,614
919,511

The movements in provision for impairment of trade FEWERFORE R BT -

receivables are as follows:

Group
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ETNF
HKS’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
At beginning of year REA 2,814
Write-back of impairment of trade MR FRE
receivables (note 6) BE(fite) (1,109)
At end of year RER 1,705
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade £ L EW R FURE R H R 2B ERE
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade R (B FE U BR TR B B 85 12,000 L (= E N,
receivables of HK$12,000 (2009: HK$1,705,000) with a 1 H%1,705,0007T) + 5% LE MR TR EY
carrying amount of HK$12,000 (2009: HK$1,705,000). FREERBE12,0000 (=TT NEF | B
The individually impaired trade receivables relate 1,705,0007C ) ° 5% LE 1@ BI B BB FE U BR 7k
to customers that were in default or delinquency in WRNBITNARERORS o AEB I
payments. The Group does not hold any collateral or credit MZELEHRFEEAERAREMEERA
enhancements over these balances. ) o
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o
Y.
22. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. EWRFREEWEE &) ;
The aged analysis of the trade and bills receivables that W BEEREZ BIRR M EREE 2 iR E
are not considered to be impaired is as follows: ki CNE g
G §
roup =
-] =
2010 2009 S
—®-BF  —TINE o
HKS’000 HK$’000 gﬁ&
BT T JBHEF T
Neither past due nor impaired W BT RE 792,925 ?‘;
Within 90 days past due BHAI90 A 123,133 |
Over 90 days past due WHAQ0H M 3,453
919,511
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate WS - B ERRE  ERGRIES RAHE
to a large number of diversified customers for whom there TREF - ZERXPUENEITNAKIER
was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to B BESREZEUGUEEAERS
a number of customers that have a good payment record HERTERCHRZBEEAR - BBELK
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors B ARREETRAAREEERREEKN
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for B ZEERDARZERE - FHitfEs
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as ERRERE - AEEWERZEEHTE

there has not been a significant change in credit quality EERmE M EERAY o
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit

enhancements over these balances.
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23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23.

Forward currency contracts: RARINE A A -
Assets BE
Liabilities =NE

The Group has entered into various forward currency
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which did
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the
fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to
HK$15,195,000 (2009: HK$13,165,000) were charged to
the income statement during the year.

TTEERMIA

Group
rEE
2010 2009

—g-8E  —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T JEMET T

41,920
12,188

AEEBRITZETFEH ST ERMER
HASNE S A E IR L EEE R - REA - 1
R R R OBR A FEE R INE ST A TH B IR
(B A 15,195,0007 ( —BEF S ¢
751%13,165,0007T) °

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. RERACEEY

Group Company
S 3 | AN

2010
—g-%5
HK$’000

2009 2010 2009
“TEhE C-%F  CIINA
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

BETT

Cash and bank balances R RIRTTAES
Time deposits with original  REIZB={EA R

maturity less than three FH 7
months when acquired T

Time deposits with original Wi B=1EF N £
maturity of over three Bt el
months when acquired TR

BEFT BT JBETT

196,582 128
604,218 -
800,800 128




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and the time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$364,890,000
(2009: HK$120,907,000) and HK$969,455,000 (2009:
HK$110,552,000), respectively. RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for period less or equal to one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates.
The bank balances and time deposits are placed with
creditworthy banks.

25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

Trade payables FERTRR X
Bills payable IS

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 —ZE—FF=FH=+—H

24. RERBEESEEYH)

RBEHR  REBUARBLEZ
BERRTERREHRERD B AB
# 364,890,000 L (Z T NF : B
120,907,0007T ) % ##969,455,0007T (=
TT A 4F ¢ B%110,552,0007T) ° AREE
TEEE B ABREMEE - ERIERBIARER
e - SERMNETERTE @ AEBEEfEE
BEREEITINEES 2 RITIHARE H iR
REMEE -

RITFEFRBEE ARITERNEZREVEB S
EHNE - REERERZERAR—FHIA
T BIAKEZANSREHFRME @ Wi
555 HATE HATE SRR R BRER A B, o SRITHERR I
EREREREBRIFARTT o

25. ENRIRESEE

Group
rEE
2010 2009

—g-%F  -TEAG
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT EETFT

916,686
41,830

958,516
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25. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 25. ENERAREMNRE®)
An aged analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the RREIR @ WEZ A E 2 EAREREEN
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as SRR DT ¢
follows:

Group
rEE
2010 2009

—g-%F  —TTAF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
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BET T JEMFoT
Within 90 days 90HIN 883,876
Over 90 days 90H AL 74,640
958,516
At the end of the reporting period, the trade payables are RIEER - BHERERBIERER—RAE
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on 90-day QOKRHIARE -
terms.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 26. HtEENRRREFEE

Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
HKS’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Other payables HAETERR 107,050
Accrued liabilities fEztaE 196,023
303,073
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an HiEAMRRRERS - B FERAA=1E
average term of three months. H e
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MERITER

Current
Bank loans
- unsecured

Non-current

Bank loans
- unsecured

Company

AF

Current
Bank loans
- unsecured

Non-current

Bank loans
- unsecured

RE
RITEH
—BER

FRE

RITEH
— B

RE
RITEH
— BN

FRE

RITEH
—EER

Effective
annual

interest rate
(%)
ERFR=E
(%)

Effective
annual
interest rate
(%)
ERFR=E
(%)

Effective

annual

interest rate

HK$'000 (%)

==
=4

Maturity

BT

Effective

annual

interest rate

HKS’000 (%)
BIBERIE

El) BEFT (%)

Maturity

Maturity

Maturity

within 1 year
0.754.73 R—FER 398,930
2010-2012
“T-TFE
075473 —E——-# 506,914
905,844

HK$000

within 1 year

0.97-0.99 R—FR 161,333
2010-2011
“T-TFE

097099 —ZE——F 238,000

399,333
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 27. MERITERE)

(continued)

Group Company
i 3 | AN
2010 2009 2010 2009

—B-%F TTNF SE-BF ZTTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETFT BETT BETT BETT
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Analysed into: DI
Bank loans repayable: RITETETE
Within one year or N—FR%K
on demand REX 398,930 161,333
In the second year BEF 337,222 161,333
In the third to fifth years, BEZEERF
inclusive BEEEMF 169,692 76,667
905,844 399,333
As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s bank borrowings in R—ZE—ZFEF=ZA=+—8 " &&
Hong Kong dollars and New Taiwanese dollars amounted ZEEEMABRITERD A AEE
to HK$1,706,680,000 (2009: HK$872,710,000) and 1,706,680,000 T (ZZ TN F : B K
HK$6,108,000 (2009: HK$33,134,000), respectively. 872,710,000t ) &% #6,108,0007T( ==
T © #%33,134,0007T) ©
As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s banking facilities were R_ZE—ZFF=A=+—8 ' ~EBHIRT
supported by corporate guarantees from the Company and FEETIHAANARRES DB ARHEL R
certain of its subsidiaries. iR o
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28. DEFERRED TAX 28. ELEBIE

Withholding tax on the Depreciation allowance
distributable profits of the in excess of related
Group's PRC subsidiaries depreciation
A& it 3 :

Fair values of derivative
Revaluation of properties financial instruments Group

; jkilos fE&HE MEE(E fTESRIADS it
2010 2010 2009 2010 2010 2009 2010
%-%% -3 -g2-%f% 8-%% £ C3-Bf nE

HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ET s # -

BT V-t V-l

At beginning of year  H\EH] - (721)
Deferred tax charged/ £t ARIEES

(credited) to the ERREESE/

income statement (E%)

during the year (note 9) (#:29) 21,579 -
Atend of year RER 21,579 (721)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$670,203,000 (2009: HK$607,704,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries of
which no assessable profits are expected to generate in
the foreseeable future.

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
generated after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
China and jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the
Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is therefore
liable to withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

At 31 March 2010, the Company has no significant
unrecognised deferred tax asset/liability (2009: Nil).

Vi Vi BT 77

11,000 4449 16,614
(12,000 (1,830) 9,616
- 2619 26,230

REBRBEELEZHEBEAASK
670,203,000 T (= T N F : B K&
607,704,0007T) ' ZEEAFIEBEBHENR
7] A] R HA(E PR S 1B P VB H B 18 7 FE AR
FmAl o AR AREEREEEEBBER 2B
RNAIRA R ERE B EEERTRS - BT
MIBEEWERZEHIEETER

BB EEAETUE - hEAENINERE
ARAINTREEE IR B IR B 10%TEH
HIE - ZE2RA—ETZENF-A—BiE
B WEAR-_FTLFT_A=1t—H%
EENFE < S IREE R BF —RIEEN
BE - EEMAEMEFEERBHE o B
RAEEMT R R10% - FUtAEEZE
RABEAERZOMB AR —TT/N\F—
A—BENEFA BN S IREENHIA
MELE -

AARAEBRIRE S - WEEH I
BTS2 ER

R-T—TF=A=+—H  ARFFKAE
EARRRELHELE BE(CFEN
CF IE
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29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. A
Shares B 12

2010 2009
—E-¥F  —TINF

HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT EHFT
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Authorised: SETE
2,000,000,000 shares of 2,000,000,000%
HK$0.05 each in nominal value R EEE0.057T 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
1,334,608,104 1,334,608,104
(2009: 1,327,211,104) (=BT NF -
shares of HK$0.05 each 1,327,211,104) i%
in nominal value FREES0.057T 66,360
A summary of the movements in the Company’s share AABIRARARE RN 2 BB ¢

capital during the year is as follows:

Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total

BRI BRT Bx
RH#E A i fE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTr  ERTrT  EBETx

At 1 April 2008 RZTZN\FMA—H 1,327,132,104 66,356 350,598 416,954
Exercise of share options  EERIEZ1T(F (a) 833,000 42 4,591 4,633
Transfer from share BRRERE
option reserve FEPN - - 1,175 1,175
Repurchase of shares Gk e (b) (754,000) (38) (3,951) (3,989)
At 31 March 2009 RZZEENF=A=1—H
and 1 April 2009 k=ZTNFNA—A 1,327,211,104 66,360 352,413 418,773
Exercise of share options EEfRIEY 1T(F (c) 7,397,000 370 37,399 37,769
Transfer from share BERERE
option reserve A - - 2,396 2,396
= At 31 March 2010 R-E-ZTF=R=+—H 1,334,608,104 66,730 392,208 458,938
g
=
P
g
=} Notes: HiaF -
3
§ (a) The subscription rights attaching to 50,000 share options and (a)  50,00017 % 783,00017 I G iR i1 .2 EIR #E
© 783,000 share options were exercised at the subscription 7 FIIA B2 78 85 4.97 7T ] E #55.607T. 2 57
|1 price of HK$4.97 per share and HK$5.60 per share (note 1E/ETTIE(H12£30) -+ AUt - 833,0008% 5%
30), respectively, resulting in the issue of 833,000 ordinary EEE#0.057T,2 ZFRU KA BEHZ A48
shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value each for a total cash B B985 54,633,0007T T LA %77 »

consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$4,633,000.
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29.

30.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Company
repurchased 754,000 of its ordinary shares HK$0.05 each
in nominal value from the market at a total consideration
of approximately HK$3,989,000 (including expenses of
HK$14,000). These repurchased ordinary shares were
subsequently cancelled by the Company and the share premium
of HK$3,951,000 has been debited to the share premium
account of the Company. In addition, the Company also
transferred HK$38,000, which is equivalent to the nominal value
of these repurchased shares, from retained profits to the capital
redemption reserve as set out in note 31(b) to the financial
statements.

(c) The subscription rights attaching to 5,800,000 share options
and 1,597,000 share options were exercised at the subscription
price of HK$4.97 per share and HK$5.60 per share (note
30), respectively, resulting in the issue of 7,397,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.05 each in nominal value each for a total
cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$37,769,000.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share options issued under the scheme are included in
note 30 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”), in compliance with the requirements of
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including independent non-executive directors,
and other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 28 August 2002 and will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of share options permitted to be
granted under the Scheme was an amount equivalent,
upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

29.

30.

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 =—ZF—ZF#=H=+—H

& NE )

B3 (&)
At (48)

b) REFEANF=ZF=+—HIFEA LR
BIA L 1B 475 13,989,000 ( £ 75 B FH B #E
14,0007T ) R 1745 [2] fiE B 73 1% [E] 18 % #50.05
o2 EiER 754,0004% - HiE @ KL At
E []f8 ZiE% - ER#3,951,0007T B 1R %
BERHF I o U)K A IR B i /827
JEH38,0007T BRASE A 1E + HHERE L]
BRI ZEE - BHEHBERYBREZN 7
31(b) °

(c)  5,800,00017%1,597,00017 K1 B iR EH#E 2 5E
[RIED Bl R 64.97 7T R E#5.607T.2
BB T (HiE30) - FI 7,397,000
R EEE150.0570.2 EiBRX KRG B
2483 2 (B #E#37,769,0007T 7 LA #

7o

B
AREZ B B R AR EZE BT 2B
Pt 2 FHANE R 2 BN IS RRIRES0 ©

B E

RARFRMN—EFE EHRANELTZEEK
mRERRERTEI([ZETEl)) - EZEMRRAF
AR BHAEEEL RIS MELRE
REN R B - ZATEIF A ERSHERIEAR
ANAIEF(RIEBIFNTES) RAEEE
HiES - ZtEE—EE—_FNA=-1+N\H
BETZ TFERER °

B AR RE AR T ZBREREER
RMEAATRS 2 L0%E AT © PAMESAT
—AAMRAREZ B AEEAER
SEATHETZRNEE - RETEEEAE
AR Z AR R BT 1% © EAHE—
HIR B IBRA IR RR 2 R AR I R B AR A
RASHE -
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30. BRESE(2)
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Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at the
date of the grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors but is not more than ten
years from the date of grant.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of the offer of the share options; (ii) the average
Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of
offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme at the end of the reporting period:

MES - TBTRASKEBERE @ kS
E{ATHSE e A 450 0 P R AR A0 JB M T ST SRR AT
EETELBE o 1IN - REMR+ =M@ A &
AR EERERTAAGHNEZRR
BB IFNITES - IEEFHBALTBBAR
A R I B BT IRAN0. 1%k 4B 8 (1%
AA R REE T B H 2 (B1%) B A s
5,000,0007T * M7BETELEERERIREAS
HEfE o

PR 2 R T AMZAR R A 228 H
AN EEREBE LT - BREZITER
HREFRTE - BERTNEERKRBRETZ
R

BRECITEEBHESEE - ENMFER
AR ZBEE : ()R RGO R B ISR E
B EAERE SR Fr 2 Wi (B (AR ARG N E
BRI A BRI AR 5 A 1B A2 2 Tk
mE KiigRHhERE -

PR B TR & AR SRR
R EZRHER -

MMEHR - ZEH 8 T ARITEZ BN
T

2010 2009
—g-%F “TThE
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number

exercise price of options  exercise price of options
DOREF19 AHET

THREER BREHE TTEER fElkER A

HKS per share ‘000 HKS$ per share ‘000

ZREE T F BB T o

0T0C 140d3Y TVNNNV

At beginning of year RER) 5.28 48,770
N Exercised during the year R 1T{# 5.56 (833)
");] Forfeited during the year &R EY - -
ﬂ At end of year NER 5.27 47,937
.m —
H
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The weighted average closing price per share at the date
of exercise for share options exercised during the year was
HK$6.83.

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

Exercise price*  Exercise period

TEER* THEBER
HKS per share
&R BT

4.97 11 September 2002 to 10 September 2012
—EE—FNA+—HE-_ZT——FhA+H

5.60 26 March 2004 to 25 March 2014

—EENFE=A -+ NBE-Z—NFE=/A=-+HH

5.60 1 April 2006 to 25 March 2014

ZETRFNA—HEZ-NF=A=+HH

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

During the year, 7,397,000 (2009: 833,000) share options
exercised resulted in the issue of 7,397,000 (2009:
833,000) ordinary shares of the Company and new share
capital of HK$370,000 (2009: HK$42,000) and share
premium of HK$37,399,000 (2009: HK$4,591,000), as
further detailed in note 29 to the financial statements.

During the year, 50,000 share options were forfeited upon
resignation of an employee, resulting in a reduction in the
share option reserve which was transferred to retained
profits of HK$75,000 (2009: Nil).

SRS R M T
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30. BRREE(2)

RERTTEEREES B 0T FRK T
B AB16.837T °

RREHR - RITEBRE ZITRERRT
ERARRLNT

Number of options
BRERE
2010 2009
—E-BE  _TTNF
‘000 ‘000
F F

24,950

18,600

4,387

47,937

& FER RV TTIZ BT8R AR AIACAR 2R BEATAR
R R RS GE MR BE 7] TR

RERN - 7,397,000 (= F N F
833,00017 ) MR HEME 1T (32 - AR A
1T EBA% 7,397,000 B (ZEE N -
833,000% ) + K38 hn A% 48 % # 370,000
(=TT N4 : B¥42,0007T ) M A%
B8 ¥ 37,399,000 C( ZEZT NF : B
4,591,0007T ) * 5F 48 & BF 87 B 75 =l 7
29 ©

RER - —AL{E B BER & pE50,00017 &
At - BERARQ R EAREE EE SRR
AR A B 75,000 (ZEZSEFE ¢
) o
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30.

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

At 31 March 2010, the Company had 40,490,000 share
options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
40,490,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$2,025,000 and share
premium of HK$212,655,000 (before issue expenses).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, 70,000
share options and 100,000 share options were exercised
by the employees of the Company on 7 April 2010 and 9
April 2010, respectively, resulting in the issue of 170,000
ordinary shares of the Company with new share capital of
HK$8,500 and share premium of HK$943,500.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 40,320,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately 3.0%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RESERVES

(a) Group
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The Group’s contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company and the then nominal
value of the issued share capital of the subsidiaries
acquired at the date of acquisition, as a result of the
reorganisation which occurred before the listing of
the Company’s shares in 1992.

As further detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, the Group applied the transitional
provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted goodwill in
respect of business combinations which occurred
prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against
consolidated retained profits. The amounts of
goodwill remaining in consolidated retained profits,
arising from the acquisition of an associate
prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 in 2001, was
HK$110,648,000 as at 31 March 2010 and 31
March 2009.

30.

31.

RSt El(2)

R_ZE—ZF=F=+—8 ' ARAEZ:T
2| 14 40,490,00017 B AL HE R EITIE o
REBARRNRI 2R A EARGEE - 2EITER
Tz B R ¥ % 5 2058 H) 85 17 40,490,000
IRARE 2 LBR - WEBINE RSB
2,025,0007T & f% 174 (8 75 ¥ 212,655,000
TL(BITEAR) °

WEHRE - ARANEEH IR —F
FUALtEER=ZZE—ZTFNANBITFER
70,000 100,000 fER%#E + BE AR QA
AT MARL70,0000% « R I8 DT AN AL
8,500 T M A% AN/ (B 7515 943,5007T °

MRS R 2 ER » RAFIEZEI T
40,320,00017 fE R HEAR ETTIE - HER
ZAARNRARIEBITIRDHI3.0% ©

i

(a) &E
REERNUFFEASEREESER
KR BHEINGERBEDHE
ﬁqo

HEARNBE—NNL_F EHANE
B ARBZEHMRBARNRDE
TR 2 B 2 P Uk BB T /B8 & R MR
BRBZERTRAREZZHE

FABNPBRERME2.4 0 AEEE
SIRERMBHRELERFIFREM
BX - AR T FRIBENZE
BaMHELNHEEELARARER
MHsE - R-ZE—FRMNSHER
ERHIE 305 AT - ARBE B2 A
EENEE  DERGAREREN
FoHSER T ZTF=A=1—
BE—ZENF=A=T—"HRBEE
110,648,0007T °
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31. RESERVES (continued) 31. RE#E
(a) Group (continued) (a) &£B#E)

In accordance with the Macau Commercial Codes, RIBBMIEER - NAR—2&HS
Nice Dyeing Factory (Macao Commercial Office) PN A] - kR ORI ER 2
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, RIE) BRAR] » HEE&iE N RMN
whose principal operation is conducted in Macau, is T FEEPRET DR 25%H) b
required to appropriate annually not less than 25% of BB RN RAERHE  BEE%HEES
its profit after tax to a legal reserve, until the balance HRIEEZ AR EREHI50% ©
of the reserve reaches 50% of the entity’s capital
fund.

(b) Company (b) A

-
2
=
8
>
25
o
=)
z
(9]
(7]
c
=
=
m
(w)
gai
Eoy
HiF
i
ot
pziif
S
pull

Share
premium
account

Share
option
reserve

[TE
redemption
reserve

Contributed
surplus

RARER
HK$'000
BETR

R ERE

e
REfRE
HK$'000
BETL

HK$'000
BRTT

RAER
HK$'000
BETT

Retained
profits

REER
HK$'000
BRTT

Total

]
HK$'000
BETx

At 1 April 2008 RZZEZN\FWA—A 350,598 7,756 1,649 48,708 785,132 1,193,843
Exercise of share 1

options fERE 29 5,766 (1,175) - - - 4,591
Repurchase of shares &% {7 29 (3,951) - 38 - (38) (3,951)
Profit for the year KEEHF - - - - 189,607 189,607
2008/2009 interim =TT/ ETNFE

dividend FEAR S, 11 - - - - (238,940)  (238,940)
2008/2009 proposed —EE)\/ZBENEE

final dividend BRRERE 11 - - - - (291,986)  (291,986)
At 31 March 2009 R-ZENF=A=+—H

and 1 April 2009 k=EENFNA—H 352,413 6,581 1,687 48,708 443,775 853,164
Exercise of share I

options B AR 29 39,795 (2,396) - - - 37,399
Forfeiture of share BEAREE

option BUH 30 - (75) - - 75 -
Profit for the year AEERR - - - - 196,303 196,303
2009/2010 interim ~ —EEH/ - E-TFE

dividend RERRR S 11 - - - - (292,242)  (292,242)
2009/2010 proposed —EZTf,/~E-FEE

final dividend FORRERE 11 - - - - (347,042)  (347,042)
At 31 March 2010 RZZE-ZF=A=+-A 392,208 4,110 1,687 48,708 869 447,582

HEAARE—NNZF EHANE
B ARBZEBHBHRRBANRIEE
TR 2 T E2 P W s Y /8 2 B U
BRZAHEEFEZER - RIEE
RE-NN—FRRDEEEER) - |1
RETERTREESRLR -

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the
difference between the nominal value of the issued
share capital of the Company and the then combined
net assets of the subsidiaries acquired on the date
of acquisition, as a result of the reorganisation which
occurred before the listing of the Company’s shares
in 1992. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), a distribution may be made out of the
contributed surplus under certain circumstances.
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

32. RKB AR ZHER

-
Y.

£

8

>

=

g Company

?, ATE]

‘,2 2010 2009
= —2-%F —ETNF
2] HK$’000 HK$'000
& BHFT BT
o

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRMD - B 48,908
ot Due from subsidiaries FEULHTIE A B BR 3R 1,362,379
S 1,411,287
al

AR RN A RR - TV - BRI R
NEBN—FREER -

The balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and are not repayable within one year.

BrTrustland Inc.5) + FTEKTB AR AAA
AIMERE - TEMBRAFBOT

All subsidiaries, other than Trustland Inc., are indirectly
held by the Company. Particulars of the principal
subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of

issued ordinary/ Percentage of

operations
MR, B

registered share capital
ERTEER
EEERAEE

equity attributable
to the Company
AARELERZZBEDE

Principal activities

EEXK

2010 2009
—g-% N

Trustland Inc.* British Virgin Islands/ US$18,000 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
HEELES,/AE 18,000%7T REER
Nice Dyeing Factory Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 100 Sale of finished knitted
non-voting deferred fabric and dyed yarn
HK$3,125,000
KERBBR AR HE TR A S 11,0007 HESTEM REY
B ERERIEAAR
#513,125,0007TC
Texwinca Enterprises British Virgin Us$1 100 Investment holding
(China) Limited* Islands/PRC
EKE(RE)BERAR EBELEE/HE 1ET REER
DA
z
E Dongguan Texwinca PRC/Mainland China HK$2,523,950,000 100 Production of finished
':E Textile & Garment Limited* knitted fabric and dyed
ﬁ yarn
p REEKREHBBKRER R B KR 7#2,523,950,0007C EERBIEM REY
e AL
8
B Nice Dyeing Factory Macau MOP100,000 100 Procurement of raw
[l (Macao Commercial materials and sale of
| Offshore) Limited* finished knitted fabric
‘JPIW and dyed yarn
; KEERRR ORPIBEFREE R JELP9#5100,0007T SREBIRMIKL S $4 65 #H48AT
BR7%) BRAR* ke

Bebd
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Texwinca Enterprises Limited

Win Ready Industrial Limited

KEEFERAA

Winlife Trading Limited
KEFTRRARR]

Baleno Holdings Limited
HRKREBRERAR

Baleno Kingdom Limited

MEEBRAR

Guangzhou Friendship
Baleno Company Limited*

BN AIEERE AR A IR

A

Shanghai Haiwen Baleno
Garment Company
Limited*

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operations

AR ER
KR

Hong Kong
HE

Hong Kong

BB

Hong Kong
9

British Virgin Islands
HBRAES

Hong Kong

&6

PRC/Mainland China

BB AR

PRC/Mainland China

EEESORRRR IR AR AR+ BB KR

Beijing Xingyu Baleno
Garment & Decoration
Company Limited*

LR EFIE I AR AR &
BRAF*

Chongqing Dasheng
Baleno Fashion
Company Limited*

BEENERRIREAR

AR

REMICIERABAR AT

Silver Kingdom Limited*

REGABRAF*

PRC/Mainland China

BBk

PRC/Mainland China

BBk

PRC/Mainland China

B hERRE

British Virgin
Islands/Taiwan

HEELES A

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

registered share capital

BRTEER
EEERAHEE

HK$2

BE27T

Ordinary HK$10
non-voting deferred
HK$2

LmRAEEL107T
IR RRERIE AR A
B2

HK$15,903,100
78#15,903,1007T

US$10,000
10,0003 7T

HK$10,000

75110,0007T

HK$48,800,000

7 1#48,800,0007T

US$210,000

210,000 7T

US$500,000

500,000 7T

HK$3,880,000

7 1£3,880,0007T

RMB500,000

AR ¥500,0007T

Us$1

17T

AR T

31 March 2010 =—Z—ZFF=H=+—H

32. RINBARZER &)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company
AABEEERZZEDE
2010 2009
—B-BF —TTNF

100

100

100

54

54

54

51.4

54

54

54

54

Principal activities

TEER

Provision of management
services

TR E R AR

Property holding

ESEEEYES

Property holding
REMHE

Investment holding

RER

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EIRNEY 2 TE R

Retailing and distribution
of causal apparel and
accessory

ERR N A 2 TE R 8

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

AR N A 2 TE R 8

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERRAY 2 TERD H

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EIRRAY 2 TE RN H

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EIRRAY 2 TERD H

Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

EIRNEY 2 TE R

Q3LIAIT SONIATOH VONIMXIL
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 32. RHE LB 2B (#7)

g
2
8
>
T
o
-
=4
=z
(2]
(%]
=
=
=
m
(]

Place of
incorporation/
registration and

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Percentage of

operations registered share capital equity attributable
MR, B DRITZER to the Company Principal activities
R B EEERAEE AATEEEZZEIE FTEEK
ol 2010 2009
S - nAE
[
i Bigpoint Limited British Virgin Us$1 100 Holding of trademarks
Islands/Mainland and provision of
% China franchise services
!
ull REBR AT RBRELES 1%t FERIEREMISRTAE
LlEiN il
Highrich Corporation* British Virgin Us$1 54 Provision of management
Islands/Mainland services and
China sub-licensing of
trademarks
REBRDF* RERLESS 1%t IRUEE RS R
LAlEN hi A AR 75
Winca (Dongguan) PRC/Mainland HK$28,460,000 100 Provision of repair and
Motor Service China maintenance services
Limited* for motor vehicles
KE (RE) AR R B KR 75528,460,0007C RETE 2 B ERRERDG
HIERBERAT*
Successful Channel British Virgin Us$1 54 Property holding
Corporation* Islands/Mainland
China
RERLESS 17T AW
LRIEN
Billion Global Limited* British Virgin Us$1 54 Retailing and distribution
Islands/Taiwan of casual apparel and
accessory
BERROBRAR* RERLEE AE 1ET EAR R85 2 T 5 88
R eI AR AR PRC/Mainland RMB1,010,000 54 Retailing and distribution
BRRAAE* China of casual apparel and
accessory
B AR AR #1,010,0007T AR KA 2 & K5 iH
RZNEREBRAR* PRC/Mainland RMB5,880,000 54 Retailing and distribution
China of casual apparel and
accessory
B, B ARE AR 5,880,000 BAR K 67 2 T R 5 8K
>
Z EAIERE AR PRC/Mainland RMB500,000 54 Retailing and distribution
E BRAF* China of casual apparel and
o accessory
g R, B AR AR ¥600,0007T BRI BERDH
)
g BRTEETE BS AR & PRC/Mainland RMB600,000 54 Retailing and distribution
5 BRAR* China of casual apparel and
I accessory
A R B A RE AR#600,0007T ERR R &2 TE K 85
|
ﬁ Excel Billion Inc.* British Virgin Us$1 54 Property holding
Hy Islands/Taiwan
H KIBEFRBRAR* EBRLES/AE 1% AW
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32. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Place of

incorporation/ Nominal value of
registration and issued ordinary/
operations registered share capital

AR ER BRTEER
REME EEERAEE

NiEVEE 3% AR & PRC/Mainland HK$2,100,000
AR AE* China

RE HREARE #12,100,0007C

* Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member firm
of the Ernst & Young global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of all
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(@) At the end of the reporting period, contingent
liabilities not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows:

32.

33.

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 —ZE—FF=FH=+—H

REE AR 2 (8)

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company Principal activities
AARBEREZEI R TEER
2010 2009
—¥-%F —“TTNF

54 Retailing and distribution
of casual apparel and
accessory

ERRAY 2 TERD

* W ZK AT E B BB AR M LK E
FTETE AT K B &

EREJNHARR 2T EMBAR  EFR
RBEEHARERNE 2 XEBNEEZENL
ARAEEFEE TR - EERR/H
SIREMBARE S RIBBNITE -

KBERE
(@) RMEMFK - AT HA R BRI
SES R

Group Company

&
2010

—g-2%
HK$’000
BB

Bank guarantees given REHEWMELS

in lieu of property ZIRTT

rental deposits EfR
Guarantees of banking A& A RIRIT

facilities granted EEfMEZ

to an associate R
Guarantees of banking  AMBARIRT

facilities granted EEREZ

to subsidiaries EfR

E5 /L\\ g

2009 2010 2009
“2INEF  —%-¥F “TINE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ~ BETT BT

2,567
12,500

12,500

4,322,470
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

At the end of the reporting period, contingent
liabilities not provided for in the financial statements
were as follows: (continued)

As at 31 March 2010, the banking facilities
granted to subsidiaries with guarantees given to
the banks by the Company were utilised to the
extent of approximately HK$1,474,788,000 (2009:
HK$506,511,000) and the banking facilities granted
to an associate with guarantees given to the banks
by the Company was not utilised (2009: Nil).

A subsidiary of the Group in Taiwan is currently
subject to a claim from the National Tax Authority
of Taiwan for the underpayment of business tax on
sales made through certain local stores in Taiwan
during the period from November 1998 to December
2002 together with penalties, of NTD50,219,000 in
aggregate (equivalent to HK$11,840,000). Further to
the appeal made by the subsidiary in July 2009, the
Supreme Administrative Court of Taiwan turned down
the appeal from the subsidiary in November 2009.
Based on the result of the appeal, the subsidiary has
made a provision of HK$11,840,000 (2009: Nil) for
the claim during the year.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department (the “IRD”)
initiated a review on the tax affairs for the past
years of certain subsidiaries of the Group. In
March 2007, protective tax assessments totalling
HK$322,038,000 for the year of assessment
2000/2001 have been issued by the IRD. In March
2008, February 2009 and January 2010, protective
tax assessments totalling HK$224,000,000,
HK$275,000,000 and HK$578,000,000 for the
years of assessment 2001/2002, 2002/2003
and 2003/2004, respectively, have been issued
by the IRD. Objections have been raised by the
Group against the protective tax assessments.
The directors of the subsidiaries believe that
there are valid grounds to object the tax claimed.
Subsequent to the objections, the IRD agreed to
hold over the tax claimed completely subject to the
purchase of tax reserve certificates in the sum of
HK$40,000,000, HK$35,000,000, HK$25,000,000
and HK$25,000,000 for the years of assessment
2000/2001, 2001/2002, 2002/2003 and
2003/2004, respectively. In view that the tax
review is in progress, the outcome of the case is
still uncertain . Up to the date of approval of these
financial statements, the directors of the subsidiaries
consider that adequate tax provisions have been
made in the financial statements.

33. EEE®)

(@)

RBMEBR - AT A BERRETE
WA - (F)

R-Z—FF=A=+—H HEBA
RIEBAARNAREERRZRITEE
#4578 1,474,788,000 T ( =T F
L& : B #506,511,0007T) ¢+ Bk
ENEWEFSARNRREEERZR
THEE(ZZTNF - &) -

REEREEZ —WBARZEEE
E BB AE BB ARG EHEHR
—NANEFE+—AE_TZ_F+—
AHESEE s PNEER RIR
#a %8 H 3 5 #50,219,0007T (SR
75%11,840,0007T) ° BL=ZF T NF
t AZWBARIMN LR - 88&RETT
BUEBR R ZZENF+— AKEZH
BARIN LR - ZHMEBARER LR
AR RAFE N XA B ESE
11,840,000 T( —TTNF : ) o

REBEE_ZTLF=A=+—H1
FE - ABBRBRRB]) MASE
BB RRIRERATEER
BEBETER R_ZTTLF=
A BRERZ=ZZZE
R F T B AR R M B A ST A B
#322,038,0007T * R=ZEE/\F =
H BN F_AR—F—FTF—
A ®BB®H=—TT— /—TT_ .=
ZZ R =R CTE=
TR FE 5 Bl 2 REE R
el 28 #224,000,0007T © B
275,000,000 7T & /& # 578,000,000
T ANEEE R ERE RS S
EHRE - Z2EHBARESHES
FHEBRBERBNOTRIRERE - B
R¥% - BBRREEEEBRNEE
MA - VAR —_TTE /T T

—
— ==

— —EE— /-—FTE- . —FEE
== —_—= = — — ==
=/ ZEE=R-TT= =TT N

AHEESBERETFSELE
#40,000,0007T * /& ¥ 35,000,000
JT /B ¥ 25,000,000 7T K B &
25,000,0007T ° AN A BEZEE
I - EEHRERDATHRA - &
EAPHREMZB - BRENEQA
EERABYBHMERFP 2HIERED R
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to thirteen
years. The terms of the leases generally also require
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants falling
due as follows:

R—FR
E_FEFOF

Within one year
In the second to fifth years,
inclusive

After five years REFEE

As lessee

The Group leases certain pieces of its land for
factories, retail outlets, plant and machinery, training
center, and staff and directors’ quarters under
operating lease arrangements. Such leases are
negotiated for terms of not more than 50 years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases with its landlords falling
due as follows:

R—FR
F_FEZERF

Within one year

In the second to fifth years,
inclusive

After five years

MhFi&

(BHREEMF)

(BREERME)

SRS R M T
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. REHERH

(a) fEREBEA
AEERELEHELTHHAE TR
A (KIsE14) @ #THEH—F=
+=F - MHOGER—BATHF A
HRFBEZ S RETAR R B R 518
NERIELESHEE

RIMERR - REBRBEBRR L
ZAAA R EEESH - REKE
FEE SRR BRI

Group
L]
2010 2009

= i
HK$'000
BETT

—FENF
HK$°000
BEFT

20,388

34,913
7,034

62,335

(b) fEREBEA
AEERBELHELHERE T
WRERE  TEEMH - BHERE
W BIFOREIRERES <
FHOZRTAP T BEATF -

RERR - REBERBEXERL
ZARERERESH - RERKE
ENESEBIMBERMT

Group
&8
2010 2009

—g-%%
HK$’000
BT

—ETNF
HK$°000
JEMT T

475,565

848,305
609,186

1,933,056
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)  34. K&EHELH#)

(b) As lessee (continued) (b) 1ERFEBEAE)

The operating lease rentals of certain retail shops are ATz EERNES - DIRER
based on the higher of a fixed rental or contingent AR AV PR 2GR R 61 - DAEIEHR
rent based on the sales of the retail outlets pursuant & FIRTEREEEEMER 25k
to the terms and conditions as set out in the A - AMERE=AELE - R
respective rental agreements. As the future sales of ORI ST SRR R Z
these retail outlets could not be estimated reliably, B8 WERKRFTABBEIAES
the relevant contingent rent has not been included i REF AR SANE o

above and only the minimum lease commitment has
been included in the above table.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Company had RBELR @ AARTELLEHER
no commitments under operating lease arrangements PAEE(ZZENGF &) -
(2009: Nil).
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEARMHEIE
The commitments for capital expenditure of the Group at REBRBEIRG I TN E AN HAE

the end of the reporting period were as follows:

Group
58
2010 2009

—g-2F  —TINF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EBFT BT

In respect of property, plant and E - BE MK
equipment, contracted BEETAE
but not provided for RIS 1,167
In respect of property, plant and MIE - BB K
equipment, authorised BZER
but not contracted for RERTH 330,331
In respect of an investment in HIEER KB
a subsidiary NG 87,005
418,503
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had no RBEHAR - AR EEREAE(ZE
capital commitments (2009: Nil). TNE | o
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) During the year, the Group had the following related
party transactions:

Sales to Megawell HE TREE

Purchases from Megawell  [A){E{EiReE

Rental expenses paid to mEEER R XAt
related companies HeEA

Notes:

()

(if)

(iii)

The sales to Megawell, an associate of the Group, were
made according to the prices and conditions offered to
the major customers of the Group.

The directors considered that the purchases from
Megawell were made according to the prices and
conditions similar to those offered to other customers of
the Megawell.

The rental expenses were paid to related companies,
of which certain directors of the Company are also the
directors and beneficial shareholders, for the provision
of directors’ quarters, retail outlet and training center for
certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
The directors considered that the monthly rentals were
charged based on the prevailing market rates at the
dates of the tenancy agreements. The rental expenses
of the directors’ quarters were included in the directors’
remuneration as detailed in note 7 to the financial
statements.

In addition, the Company and the Group have
provided certain guarantees for banking facilities
granted to Megawell, as detailed in note 33(a) to the
financial statements.
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36. BEALRS
(@) RERN -  KEBZETUTEEAL
%5

2010
—E-BF

2009
—EFENF
HK$’000
BT T

HK$’000
BETT

Notes

Kiat

(i) 468,386
(ii) 339,838
(iii) 17,372

EE

) EEEFEEGBERT)ZHET
REFREG = EES M EER
AT -

(i)  EFEZBAEEREZESRET
HE(ERIR E AT (2 (B8RRI
18E -

(i) & BEFEXN THERAERE D
BB R EIAEZ HTE R AIAEFEE
& FEEHRIEIFL  ZERE]
ZEFEREnRRINBARAZE
F-BEEFRRGAZHTIREHE
BRIFFTHZ TS ERERE - (142
EFEEHLBEAEBEREED
& USRI BT o

gEoN AR B RAKEBEEEDS
TFRITEEER - FHEBRSRIE
HERMIFE33(a) ©
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

As at 31 March 2010, Nice Dyeing Factory Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
provided advances of HK$19,736,000 (2009:
HK$12,984,000) to Baleno Kingdom Limited, a non-
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 3%
(2009: HIBOR plus 2%) per annum.

In addition, as at 31 March 2010, Nice Dyeing
Factory (Macao Commercial Offshore) Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
provided advances of HK$268,297,000 (2009:
HK$443,847,000) to Baleno Holdings Limited, a
non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at 83%
of HIBOR plus 3% (2009: 83% of HIBOR plus 2%) per
annum.

The principal purpose of these advances is to finance
the operations of Baleno Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries. The advances are unsecured and have
no fixed terms of repayment.

A minority shareholder of the Group’s 54%-owned
subsidiary had provided an unconditional guarantee
to indemnify the Group from any loss arising
from the recoverability of prepayments made to a
supplier of the Group of HK$24,178,000 (2009:
HK$25,029,000) as included in the balance of the
prepayments, deposits and other receivables of the
Group as at the end of the reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group:

Short term employee benefits EHREEER

Post-employment benefits BB R R

Total compensation paid to TEEBAB
key management personnel FHEN4REE

36. BEATXZ#)

(b)

RZZT—ZTF=ZA=+—8  &ARQA
ZEBHENBRRKELRRAR
REIRAARRIZEEZEEBWNE A
AMERERARREZERAES
#19,736,0007C( =TT N4 : BEE
12,984,0007T) * FHEABEBRT
REREMI%B(ZTEENE - FBR
TRIZEFRENM2%) °

N R=FE—ZTF=F=+—H "
ARAEZEWEAN B R A KELBR
CRPBEEE R BRABIRAR
AEEEHRENBARIIERER
BRA AR ERE 268,297,000
TL(ZZEZNF : B%443,847,000
T0)  FRERAFBRTEEREM
3%M83%( — T NF : HFHBRITRA
IR B IN2%HI83%)

ZEEFTEREREREERERA
AREMBARIZEEES - LilE
RIS S TE R KA A o

ANEBEBSARE=NB AR Z— D
HRERAE@BN —EEEERE
#24,178,0007L( Z T N4F : B
25,029,0007T, ) 12 fH f8 (& (- HE AR LA T
BEMAREERR EZBX - KRS
HR - ZHEBERBEMARE 5T
R H Ah UL AR SR AEfR AR o

REBETREREABFHMN

2010
—5-%5

2009
—EENEF
HK$’000
BT T

94,010
60

HK$’000
BT

94,070
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 36. BEATXRZ®)
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d) AEEXEBTEABETM : (&)
the Group: (continued)

Further details of directors’ remuneration are EEMESFBH NIRRT ©
included in note 7 to the financial statements.
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Save as disclosed under “Details of non-exempt BREBERESeREAN TEREN
continuing connected transactions” of the Report HEREXISFHB I - LufEEA
of the Directors, the related party transactions in +32 5/ (a)iii) B AR E TR AIE
respect of items (a)(iii) above constitute continuing 14AE ZE65(4)GREFAR A BAHR -
connected transactions which are exempted from NERBIBRREMENFTERER
the reporting, announcement and independent 5 o

shareholders’ approval requirements as defined in
Chapter 14A Rule 65(4) of the Listing Rules.

37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. REEE s HNEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RIBERR - FEeRTAR@ENT
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
Group 55
Financial assets THEE

Financial

assets at fair

value through

Held to  profit or loss
maturity — held for Loans and
investments trading receivables

RUARE
FEEH#D
STARERR
LREE XK
—RFEER BWHE CE
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT

Trade and bills receivables  JEUEBER kB EE

Financial assets included in ~ BFERENFTIE - T8 Rk
prepayments, deposits and  EfEUER A2
other receivables SREE

Held-to-maturity investments 32 5|HiRIRE

Long term rental deposits REfeke

Derivative financial assets #7144 REE

Cash and cash equivalents 4 RIS %(EY
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. REBE T HNEMIAE®)
(continued)
Group &8
Financial liabilities THEE

Financial

liabilities at

fair value
through profit Financial
or loss - liabilities at

-
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=
8
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==
]
-
(=)
=
[}
(%)
C
=
-
m
O
e;aT
s
i
g held for trading amortised cost
B

il

BARE
STEEHSE
BN E )
EReE BREBHRA
—FEEE ARNERERE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFT BEFT BETFT

Due to an associate FESHG & AT
Trade and bills payables FERERR L BT R
Financial liabilities included B 3ERH it E SRR

in other payables and MIEFTBERZ

accrued liabilities CRAE
Derivative financial liabilities 744 @& &
Interest-bearing bank M BERTT

borrowings B
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37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. RERES>HNEMIA®)
(continued)
Group &8
Financial assets THEE

Financial

assets at fair

value through

Held to  profit or loss
maturity — held for Loans and
investments trading receivables
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NRfE

S EIH ERk
HIRE —FHEEE FEIIR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BT
Trade and bills receivables — FEURBE % B ZE 15 - - 919,511 919,511
Held-to-maturity investments 3% = FIHAE)IZE 91,043 - - 91,043
Long term rental deposits REfeke - - 93,979 93,979

Financial assets included in ~ BFERENTIE - 518 Rk
prepayments, deposits and  E#EURE N

other receivables SREE - - 303,679 303,679
Derivative financial assets {742 REAE - 41,920 - 41,920
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RIEEZEY - - 800,800 800,800
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—
Y.
§ 37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. REEESNWERIA )
E (continued)
<) Group &8
% Financial liabilities THEE
c
§| Financial
S liabilities at
%\E\f fair value
FHF through profit Financial
or loss — liabilities at
g held for trading amortised cost
P NARE
- A=
FFAE=EH
EEAE REESHRA
—FHEEE ARMNESRBE =
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT BT T
Due to an associate FESHG & AT - 11,231 11,231
Trade and bills payables R BRI B N R4 - 958,516 958,516
Financial liabilities included BIERHMENER R
in other payables and FEETEaERZ
accrued liabilities ERasE - 107,050 107,050
Derivative financial liabilities T4 &R EE&E 12,188 - 12,188
Interest-bearing bank M BERTT
borrowings B - 905,844 905,844
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=
m
x
37. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 37. REEE S HNEMIA® ;
(continued) E
Company AT S
Financial assets THEE %
(7]
2010 2009 =
—E-%BF —TTNEF S
Loans and Loans and @*
receivables receivables ;ﬁ
BERR Bk
L TEe: filere i
HK$’000 HK$’000 E)“
BT T BT T
Due from subsidiaries FEUHI B A RIBRIK 1,362,379
Dividend receivable RIS AZ B, 200,000
Cash and cash equivalents BERBEEED 128
Financial liabilities THIEE

2010 2009
—=-%F “ETNF
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
RS R A RE AR
ARNEREE ARNESRARE

HKS$’000 HK$’000

BT BB T

Interest-bearing bank borrowings M BERITER 399,333
Financial liabilities included in accrued BIERETEERNZ

liabilities EEAE 303
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38.

39.

—F-FF=A=+—H

FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and
disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities;

Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly;

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

As at 31 March 2010, the financial instruments measured
at fair value held by the Group comprised of equity
investments at fair value through profit or loss and was
classified as Level 1.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise bank loans and overdrafts, and
cash and short term deposits. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts. The
purpose is to manage currency risks arising from the
Group’s operations and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies
in relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the
financial statements.

38.

39.

3
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s long term
debt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using
an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate debts. To
manage this mix in a cost-effective manner, the Group
may enter into interest rate swap contracts to reduce its
exposure to interest rate fluctuations.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the
Group’s and the Company’s equity.

Increase/

SRS R M T

31 March 2010 —ZE—FF=FH=+—H

39. IKEREEEERBE #)

M=ER
AEEEHTSMNEXEHRAL T REAKHE
ZEREMEKETER -

AEENBEENAEENE S EEER
MENERERNEKA - BAEKAYGEE
BZAEE - ARBER B R E A KLU
(REE RS 2 ER -

TER® T EREMERMERNERT
AR BB BATEH (T8 BROTE)
MARERAR TS - AR
FIRSBHGHE -

Group Company

£5 AT

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)

(decrease) in profit before in profit before

in interest rate tax and equity tax and equity

2010 —E-BF
Hong Kong dollar it
Hong Kong dollar ot
2009 —TThE
Hong Kong dollar ot
Hong Kong dollar okia

FlZ=igmm,
(B2) (B2 (B2

BRBERTERI K
Rz,

BRBLATE R B
R0,

% HK$°000 HK$°000
JEMT T JEMT T

1 (11,777) (3,931)
(1) 11,777 3,931
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B REKMEEEZERBEK &)
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AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating
units in currencies other than the units’ functional
currency. Approximately 28% (2009: 28%) of the Group’s
sales are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the operating units making the sale,
whilst almost 54% (2009: 55%) of costs are denominated
in currencies other than the units’ functional currency.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities) and the
Group’s equity.

2010 —E-=F

If Hong Kong dollar weakens WS AR
against RMB A

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens WS H AR
against RMB Van(=!

2009 —ETNF

If Hong Kong dollar weakens THEKE AR
against RMB BZ2E

If Hong Kong dollar strengthens HEEEARE
against RMB FHE

ShEE = B
AEBFERSERRR - ZRBRRE&E
BALIAZEMINGEE B AN 2 BTN E
SREE o ANEEH28%( — T T NF 1 28%)
ZHETIACE BN T IAIN 2 EHE AT
18+ R #954%( =B TNF : 55%) Z KA
TIPS B T ge B AN BHEEHE ©

TRERTRBEMREEEMALMEE
MIERT  AREONKRTEATEN (BN EE
HEEMBREAAENE) RAKEIE
BE AR AR A RBER S8 BRL
o

Increase/
(decrease)

Increase/
(decrease)

in exchange in profit before
rate tax and equity

R AR R

E = m LM,
GRA) (GRi4)

% HK$°000
BT T

1 1,545

(1) (1,545)
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-
established customers will be considered for open account
terms and the approval of credit terms is subject to
stringent credit check procedures. In addition, receivable
balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, and
derivative financial instruments, arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amount of these instruments, which is considered
by the directors as not significant as the counterparties
of these other financial assets are mainly well-recognised
corporations.

The held-to-maturity investments are interest-bearing
notes. At 31 March 2010, all issuers of held-to-maturity
investments are well established corporations. The
Group’s exposure to impairment is not significant.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables are disclosed in note 22 to the financial
statements.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts and bank loans. As at 31 March 2010, 29%
(2009: 56%) and 71% (2009: 44%) of the Group’s total
borrowings will mature over one year and in less than one
year, respectively.

39. IKEREEEERBE#)

BN R R

AEEHEZEHBRITES RIBTERNA
FERAESEEEREREREGTE - ¥
—E-TFEZ-A=-+—H AEERER
BR—FEE—FRIHN - 2 311E29%
(ZZZNEF : 56%) RT1%(ZZEZNF :
44%) °

= @ALIAIT SONIATOH VONIMX3L

sy
=

AEERHEHRNSREBBEIHER - &
BRARMBEOIAN - BT

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

A i
o
i
it
wa
B
el

Group £

3to
less than
12 months

Less than

On demand 3 months Total

1to 5 years

HK$000

—E1F Ch

$000 HK$'000

=EANA
HK$'000
BT

2010 —E-FF
Due to an associate RN
Interest-bearing bank Bt 2 8R1T
borrowings =6
Trade and bills payables BRI LENEZRE
Other payables Hib AR
Derivative financial TSR
liabilities B
Guarantees of banking BEEARRT
facilities granted to an EEmMEL
associate BR
2009 “TTNF
Due to an associate FERBE AR - 11,231 - - 11,231
Interest-bearing bank By B aR1T
z borrowings =5 - 108,301 290,629 506,914 905,844
Z Trade and bills payables ~ EREZ R ENEE - 939,596 18,920 - 958,516
E Other payables Bt ER 303 106,747 - - 107,050
g Derivative financial TESR
3 liabilities B - 2,546 9,642 - 12,188
§ Guarantees of banking BB ARIRTT
|°| facilities granted to an EEMEZ
u}i] associate ER 12,500 - - - 12,500
A 12,803 1,168,421 319,191 506,914 2,007,329
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B EKEEBEZRBEK &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBMERRRE)
Company AT

Q3LIAIT SONIATOH VONIMXIL

3to
Less than less than
On demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total

-7

|

=z
BER  =EANMR  t-EAR —Z8f G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT BETT ERTTT BETT

B HEEEF L

2010 —2-2%
Financial liabilities included SR EEERNZ
in accrued liabilities SREE
Interest-bearing bank B B ARTT
borrowings -5
Guarantees of banking BHBARSET
facilities granted to EEffEZ
subsidiaries R
2009 “TTNEF
Financial liabilities included B EREEERNZ
in accrued liabilities SHaRE 303
Interest-bearing bank By B aRTT
borrowings B -
Guarantees of banking B BRRET
facilities granted to EEfEZ
subsidiaries 2R 4,322,470

- - - 303

- 161,333 238,000 399,333

- - - 4322470

4,322,773

- 161,333 238,000 4,722,106

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to the equity holders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholder,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
March 2010 and 31 March 2009.
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A B R M T

31 March 2010 —ZF—FF=FH=+—H

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 39. B EKEEBEZERBEKR &)
AND POLICIES (continued)

-
:
8
>
,5 Capital management (continued) EAREEE)
% The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which AEBERABEABELERERTERN EXG
@ is total interest-bearing debts, less cash and cash fELL IR IR & RIS FEWEMNEN S
§| equivalents, divided by total equity. The Group’s policy is B BAEERTE - AEEMNBUREE
g\ to maintain the gearing ratio at an appropriate level. EIHERBELL RN EKTE o
e;gt
;ﬁ Group £H
1 2010 2009
E —E-TF ZETHhF
HKS’000 HK$°000
BT T BT
Total Interest-bearing debts KM EER 905,844
Less: Cash and cash equivalents Nk RERRSEEY (800,800)
105,044
Total equity B 4,274,788
Gearing ratio BEARBELRE 0.02
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. BimR2%E
The financial statements were approved and authorised for APBEHRERER_ZE—ZF A=+ /\HH

issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2010. EEOERITRETE
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